MAY 19, 2014

NOTICE REGARDING: LONG RANGE FINANCIAL PLAN
FISCAL YEAR 2014-15 PROPOSED BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR 2012-13 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

The City is releasing its draft Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2012-13 and the
Proposed Budget for 2014-15. Each of these documents should be read in conjunction with the attached
reconciling schedule. The attached schedule provides important information about each of these
documents and how they relate to the City’s Long Range Financial Plan.



COMPARISON OF GENERAL FUND BALANCE IN STOCKTON'S LONG-RANGE FINANCIAL PLAN
TO NEWLY-RELEASED CAFR FOR 6/30/13 AND ANNUAL BUDGET FOR FY 2014-15

A. Reconciliation of Long-Range Financial Plan (LRFP) to Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

There is virtually no difference between the amounts reported in the LRFP and in the CAFR for available fund balance (Fund 010-General Fund):

Table 1. Unassigned/Available Balance: 6/30/2012 6/30/2013

6/30/13 CAFR Unassigned Balance S0 $3,093,428 released 5/19/2014

LRFP Ending Available Balance S0 $3,074,000 updated 3/2/2014
LRFP Over (Under) CAFR 50 (519,428) -0.6%

For CAFR reporting purposes, other funds are classified under the heading of "General Fund" that do not meet criteria to be classified as another fund type under
generally-accepted accounting principles (GAAP). These other funds have their own assets, liabilities and fund balances and are combined with the General Fund
under the "General Fund" column in the CAFR. The LRFP is a forecast for the General Fund only, which is Fund 10. The LRFP reflects the actual/forecasted General
Fund payments to these other funds under "Program Support for Other Funds." The following is the reported amount of the combined "General Fund" fund
balance in the CAFR by component (see definitions below):

Table 2. Balance by Component: (1) Net Change 6/30/2012 6/30/2013

Nonspendable $53,956 $355,243 $409,199
Restricted $234,046  $2,100,000  $2,334,046
Committed $15,704,451 $8,070,458  $23,774,909
Assigned ($2,401,053)  $4,111,046  $1,709,993
Unassigned $3,093,428 S0 $3,093,428

Total Fund Balances $16,684,828 $14,636,747  $31,321,575

The following schedule reconciles the total combined "General Fund" fund balance as reported in the CAFR for each fund by component:

6/30/2012  6/30/2013  6/30/2013  6/30/2013  6/30/2013  6/30/2013  6/30/2013

Table 3. Balance by Subfund: Net Change Totals Totals Unassigned Assigned Committed Restricted  Nonspendable
10 - General Fund $2,125,169  $5,332,530  $7,457,700  $3,093,428  $1,024,366 $689,077  $2,334,046 $316,782
11 - Payroll Trust Fund $8,089 $56,959 $65,047 - $65,047 - - -
12 - Bankruptcy Fund (2) $13,667,619  $5,600,000 $19,267,619 - - 419,267,619 - -
41 - Library Fund $357,699 $3,520,514 $3,878,213 - - $3,818,213 - $60,000
44 - Recreation Services Fund $364,251 $471,030 $835,281 - $835,281 - - -
45 - Boat Launching Facility Fund $46,993 $307,880 $354,873 - $354,873 - - -
86 - Entertainment Venues Fund $115,008 ($652,166) ($537,157) - ($569,574) - - $32,417

Total Fund Balances $16,684,828 $14,636,747 $31,321,575  $3,093,428 1,709,993 $23,774,909  $2,334,046 $409,199

The net change from the prior year of the combined General and Bankruptcy funds (10 & 12) was estimated in the LRFP at $16,086,000, based on the City's 4Q13
report (Exhibit 2016 to Leland Deposition). The actual change was $15,792,780, for a variance of $293,212 to actual audited results, primarily due to adjustments for
grant reimbursements.

Table 4. Net Improvement in Balance Over Prior Year (Funds 10 & 12):

Net Improvement in General Fund Balance Over Prior Year (CAFR) $15,792,788 released 5/19/2014
Net Improvement in General Fund Balance Over Prior Year (LRFP) $16,086,000 as of 2/25/2014
LRFP Over (Under) CAFR $293,212 1.8%

B. Reconciliation of LRFP to Annual Budget for FY 2014-15.

The following is a comparison of ending available General Fund balance (Fund 10) from the proposed Annual Budget to the LRFP:

Table 5. Budgeted General Fund Available Balance: 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

Proposed 2014-15 Annual Budget S0 $3,093,428 $9,781,222  $20,673,445 released 5/20/2014

LRFP Ending Available Balance S0 $3,074,000 $9,751,000  $20,674,000 as of 2/25/2014
LRFP Over (Under) 2014-15 Annual Budget ) ($19,428) ($30,222) $555

(1) GASB Statement No. 54 creates the following five components of fund balance, as described in Restricted Funds Analysis prepared by the City (4/30/12):
- Non-spendable fund balance— amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory) or are required to be maintained intact (such as the corpus of an
endowment fund)
- Restricted fund balance —amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government),
through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation
- Committed fund balance— amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority; to be reported
as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the government takes the same highest-level action to remove or change the constraint
- Assigned fund balance— amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to
which the governing body delegates the authority
- Unassigned fund balance— amounts that are available for any purpose; these amounts are reported only in the general fund.

(2) Until 7/1/13, appropriations for bankruptcy costs were reported in the General Fund with any unspent appropriations reported in the 2011 and 2012 CAFRs as

a reservation/committment of General Fund balance under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. On 6/25/13, the City Council adopted the FY 2013-14 pendancy plan budget
which establishes a separate fund for bankruptcy (012). However, for purposes of the audited CAFR under GAAP, this is a subfund of the General Fund. The LRFP reports transfers to
the Bankruptcy Fund starting in FY 2011-12 based on the amount of unspent appropriations and ending available General Fund balance consistent with City Council authorization.

5/21/2014-8:25 PM
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May 19, 2014

To the Audit Committee of the
City of Stockton, California

The Stockton City Charter, federal grant regulations and agreements with investors
require the City of Stockton, California (“City”) to publish a complete set of financial
statements presented in conformance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (“GAAP”) and audited by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.
Pursuant to that requirement, we respectfully submit this draft Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”) of the City of Stockton for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2013. The significance and demands of the trial this week has created a
delay with our ability to complete our final review and issue a final published CAFR.
We will finalize the draft shortly after the audit committee meeting and look forward
to presenting the details to you at the next scheduled audit committee meeting in
June 2014. The draft should not be relied upon for purposes of making investment
or other decisions affecting the City and is subject to change upon final review. We
do not anticipate issuing draft reports in future years as we emerge from bankruptcy
and resume our normal audit schedule.

Though also delayed beyond originally anticipated, this report is the last in the series
of three annual CAFRs that have undergone a major review effort to correct the
City’s accounting records and bring its financial reporting to current accounting and
reporting standards. We are pleased to report that it is the first report in which no
prior financial statements have been corrected due to past errors. It also has been
performed in approximately four months. A normal audit of a City of our size, lacking
the complexity that a bankruptcy brings with it, takes at least six months to perform.
This is a direct result of the dedication of numerous hours by the City Manager, the
Finance Team, City Departments, and our auditor Pun & McGeady, LLP.

We have now received a “clean” or unqualified audit opinion on both the fiscal year
2013 and 2012 CAFR’s and no audit adjustments were made. Under City Council’s
fiscal sustainability goal to “Get Our Fiscal House in Order,” we feel confident our
efforts over the past three years have significantly improved the accuracy,
usefulness and reliability of our financial reports. Some City critics have touted that
the CAFR’s in prior years were timely but these statements fail to take into account
they contained errors that could have impacted their usefulness in critical decision
making. The City’s goal is first and foremost to ensure its financial statements are
accurate. Going forward efforts will be to provide transparent and accurate financial
reporting on a timely basis.
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GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPALS

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (‘GASB”) establishes GAAP for
local and state governments in the United States and Canada. Its counterpart for
private-sector entities is the Financial Accounting Standard Board (“FASB”). The
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and state and federal regulators
require that financial reports follow Generally Accepted Accounting Principles,
referred to as GAAP, in order to receive an unqualified audit opinion. Additional
standards that govern disclosures in the CAFR are derived from the Government
Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (“GFOA”) and the
California Committee on Municipal Accounting (“CCMA”").

GAAP requires management to provide a narrative overview and analysis discussing
the City’s financial position to accompany the basic financial statements. This
narrative overview is called Management’'s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) and
provides an analytical overview of the City’s financial position for its major funds, as
defined by GAAP, on a government-wide basis. This letter of transmittal is intended
to complement the MD&A and not to duplicate the MD&A. It provides additional
qualitative information on impacts to the City to help improve the reader’s
understanding of the information presented in the CAFR.

The City’'s CAFR conforms to the requirements established by the City’s Charter,
GFOA and agreements with investors. It includes basic financial statements,
footnotes, supplemental information required by GASB for GAAP financial reports,
MDA&A of the financial statements, the City’s independent auditor’s opinion regarding
the conformance of the financial statements with GAAP, and other information
required to conform to GFOA standards.

City management acknowledges that it is responsible for this CAFR and has
completed the analysis required to assure that the financial statements are materially
accurate and in conformance with GAAP.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The City Charter, Article XIX, Section 1911, requires that “an independent audit be
made of all City accounts each fiscal year by certified public accountants”. The
City’s auditor, Pun and McGeady LLP, an independent firm of licensed certified
public accountants completed the audits for fiscal years 2013 and 2012.

The purpose of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial statements of the City of Stockton as of, and for, the fiscal year ended June
30, 2013 are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

The independent auditors concluded that there was reasonable basis for rendering
an unqualified opinion that states the City’s financial statements as of, and for, the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.
Important information was also included in the opinion commenting on the City’s
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ability to continue as a going concern due to the chapter 9 bankruptcy filing on June
28, 2012, just two days prior to the start of this financial statement. The independent
auditor’s report begins on page 1 of the financial section of this report.

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT TO FEDERAL GRANTOR AGENCIES

A broader, federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the needs of federal
granting agencies is also required. The standards governing Single Audit
engagements require the independent auditor to report on the fair presentation of the
financial statements and on the audited government's internal controls and
compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and
legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. Additional federal
grant reporting is required of grant awards received under Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-133 and the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act
(“ARRA"). Information relating to the Single Audit is available in the City’s separately
issued Single Audit Report.

There have been delays in the timely completion of the fiscal year 2013 and 2012
Single Audits, which have resulted in threats of sanctions against the City. To date,
no funding has been lost as a result of the sanctions. Authorizations to proceed for
federally funded projects were frozen, then lifted, then frozen again in October 2013
as a result of the 2012 report being filed late. The City expects to submit the 2013
Single Audit report in time that impacts to its federally funded projects are not
anticipated. There is no effect from these sanctions on the financial statements at
June 30, 2013.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The City of Stockton is located in the center of California’s agriculturally robust San
Joaquin Valley and is the seat of San Joaquin County. Stockton is located about 80
miles east of the San Francisco Bay Area (“Bay Area”’) and 40 miles south of
Sacramento, the capitol of California. It is connected to the Bay Area by the ACE
commuter train and several major freeways. Driving time to the Bay Area ranges
from 45 minutes to 90 minutes, depending on the destination.

The City encompasses nearly 65 square miles and has an estimated population in
January 2013 of approximately 296,344, making it the 13" largest city in California.
Stockton is surrounded by the rich and fertile lands of the California Central Valley
and is home to the furthest inland deep water seaport in California. The City has a
diversified economic base as a regional center for commerce, both in agricultural
and manufacturing export trade activities. Its distribution of sales tax producing
businesses mirrors the diversity of the average of all California cities. The University
of the Pacific, California State University-Stanislaus, Stockton campus and San
Joaquin Delta Community College are all located in Stockton. Four school districts
serve K-12 students within the City limits.

GOVERNMENT STRUCTURE AND TYPES OF SERVICES

One of the oldest cities in the State of California, Stockton was founded in 1849 and
incorporated in 1850.  Stockton’s first local Charter under the 1879 State
Constitution was approved by the voters in 1888 and ratified by the State Legislature
in 1889. The current Charter, under which the City operates, was approved by the
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voters in November 1922 and became effective in 1923. This Charter changed the
City from a commission form of government to the current City Council — City
Manager form of government. Under the Council-Manager form of government,
policy-making and legislative authority are entrusted to the City Council. The Mayor
and representatives from six districts are chosen by city-wide election for staggered
four year terms, with a two term limit. The City Manager is responsible for carrying
out the policies and ordinances of the City Council, appointing department heads
and overseeing the operation of the City. The City Manager, City Attorney, City
Auditor, and City Clerk are appointed by the City Council.

The City Charter has been amended over 100 times since its approval in 1922. In
June 2013, a Charter Review Advisory Committee (CRAC) and an Ad-Hoc
Committee of the City Council were formed to evaluate certain sections of the
Charter recommended for amendment. The Ad-Hoc Committee advises the City
Council on proposed amendments to the City Charter submitted by staff and the
CRAC. Future elections could see additional proposed amendments to the City’s
Charter.

The City provides a full range of municipal services including: public safety (police
and fire), community development, economic development and affordable housing,
public works and street maintenance, parks, recreational services, libraries, and
utilities providing water, wastewater, and stormwater. The City serves approximately
55% of water and 100% of wastewater accounts in the City. California Water
Service Company (“Cal Water”), an investor-owned company, provides water service
to 42% of the accounts, and San Joaquin County provides water service to the
remaining 3% of accounts within the City.

Certain community development, revitalization activities and infrastructure
construction were previously provided through the Stockton Redevelopment Agency
(“Agency”), a legally separate entity. Effective February 1, 2012, all city and county
redevelopment agencies in California were dissolved as a result of State legislation
that was upheld by the State Supreme Court. Actions required to wrap-up the affairs
of the Agency were transferred to the Successor Agency of the City of Stockton
(“Successor Agency”) as of February 1, 2012. The City Council also sits as the
Successor Agency’s Board; however, all actions pertaining to the Successor
Agency'’s obligations are made by the Successor Agency Oversight Board, which is
comprised of members representing the interests of local jurisdictions affected by
redevelopment activities and revenue claims, including the City. The City receives
revenues from the Successor Agency for administrative support provided to the
Agency by the City’'s Economic Development Department.

This report includes the financial activity of the Stockton Public Financing Authority,
a separate legal entity controlled by the City. The Successor Agency’s financial
statements are reported as a private-purpose trust fund in these financial
statements.

il
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FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The financial information presented in the financial statements is best understood
when it is considered from the broader perspective of the environment within which
the City of Stockton operates.

Since filing for protection under chapter 9 on June 28, 2012, only two days prior to
this audit period, the City Council has maintained its strategic focus on the Council’s
four primary goals: Improving public safety, getting our fiscal house in order,
economic development, and organizational capacity. Below is a discussion of
significant factors affecting the City’s financial condition:

Voter Approved % Cent Sales Tax

To maintain fiscal sustainability and aid the City in its exit plan from bankruptcy,
voters on November 5, 2013 narrowly approved Measures A and B, which will
generate an estimated $6.7 million in sales tax revenues in the first partial year
2013-14 and a projected $28 million in future full fiscal years. The non-binding
advisory measure (Measure B) directs the City to spend 65% of the new sales tax
proceeds to pay for law enforcement and crime prevention services, such as those
described in the City's Marshall Plan on Crime, and 35% should be used only to pay
for the City's efforts to end bankruptcy and for services to residents, businesses and
property owners. The sales tax increase went into effect on April 1, 2014. The
City’s expects its first advance payment will be received in June 2014 and is the start
toward rebuilding the City’s long term viability and reputation as a safe place to live,
work and invest. The City Council took action on February 25, 2014 to approve the
appropriation of funding for the first phase of the implementation plan which
approved the hiring of an additional 120 police officers plus support staff.

Plan of Adjustment and Financial Recovery

On October 10, 2013, the City filed with the U.S. Bankruptcy Court a proposed plan
of adjustment (as amended November 18, 2013) and its disclosure statement to
restructure its obligations. At the date of this printing, the City may have completed
its confirmation hearing and trial. If confirmed by the Court, this Plan will reduce the
City’s long-term obligations and commitments by nearly $1 billion and allow the City
to emerge from bankruptcy. The trial to consider confirmation of the City's Proposed
Plan of Adjustment (also known as the "Exit Plan), began May 12, 2014. Even as
the City enters trial, the Proposed Plan is subject to continuing mediation and
negotiation and could change before it is officially confirmed by the court. If
confirmed in mid-2014, the bankruptcy process will have consumed over two years,
with the first nine months spent in litigation over eligibility. The Exit Plan, if
approved, will settle nearly 95% of the City’s claims in bankruptcy. One creditor,
Franklin High Yield Funds, has objected to the confirmation of the Plan and the City
is currently in litigation over this matter. The Adversary Proceedings will take place
during the trial.

For detailed information about the City Council’s actions, including a copy of the
proposed plan of adjustment (as amended), taken subsequent from the end of Fiscal
2013 to the present, please refer to the City’s website for:
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e Chapter 9 bankruptcy - www.stocktongov.com/bankruptcy, and
e Budget — www.stocktongov.com/budget.

Marshall Plan on Crime

One of the Strategic Initiatives adopted by the Stockton City Council to reduce crime
and increase public safety is the Marshall Plan on Crime. Since the initiative began,
the crime in Stockton has dropped significantly. In 2013 homicides dropped to 32,
an almost 55 percent decline partly as a result of the efforts of the Stockton Police
Department and Operation Cease fire, a key component of the Marshall Plan on
Crime. With the passage of Measure A, an Office of Violence Prevention will be
created to institutionalize and expand Operation Ceasefire.

Economic Development and Job Creation

The City of Stockton’s advantages in location, markets and access made Stockton a
magnet for real estate development from 2000 to 2007. These attributes attracted
residents who commuted to high-paying jobs in the Bay Area, exposing the local
economy and the City to financial risks when the housing and financial markets
collapsed. In 2008, the City recorded the highest revenue levels in its history. In the
preceding five years, permits for single-family dwellings had swelled to nearly 3,000
per year when the historical 10 year average was 800. This signaled anticipated
future population growth of nearly 10,000 people per year. However, during the
fiscal years 2008-09 through 2011-12, residential dwelling permits averaged only
135 per year and in calendar year 2013 were at 97.

The median home prices fell from a peak of $400,000 in December 2005 to
$118,500 in February 2012, a decline of 70%. By January 2014, the median home
price in Stockton had still only recovered to $168,250. The 2013-14 tax roll for the
City of Stockton shows a net taxable value increase of 3.6% which is less than the
increase countywide of 5.0%. Stockton continues to lag in its recovery as compared
to other nearby regions of Northern California. The City’s Community Development
Department does not expect a normal housing market to become established until
2016 or 2017.

Based on forecasts, discussions with the San Joaquin County Assessor, and the
City’s tax consultants, we have projected a 2.3% growth in revenues in fiscal 2014.
Even with the enactment of the % cent sales tax, fiscal year 2014-15 total revenues
are anticipated to be $189.9 million which is still below pre-recession levels.

Property Tax Administration Fee Refund

Stockton, along with a number of other cities, sued the County of Los Angeles in City
of Alhambra et al. v. County of Los Angeles regarding the calculation of Property Tax
Administration Fees (PTAF) from 2006-07 to 2011-12. The Cities argued that SB
1096 Triple Flip and Motor Vehicle License Fee revenues, which are now
incorporated into Property Tax category, should have been excluded from the
calculation of PTAF charged to cities by the counties. The California Supreme
Court, on appeal, ruled unanimously that the methodology utilized by the County of
Los Angeles, as well as the other involved counties, was illegal. Late in the year, the
County of San Joaquin notified the City that it would be complying with the ruling and
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issued a refund to the City of $3.1 million. This one time money has been reported
in these financial statements.

The City’s Long-Range Financial Plan

The City, working with its bankruptcy consultants, has developed a comprehensive
and detailed 30-year Long Range Financial Plan (LRFP) which provides a long-term
forecast for the City’s General Fund. The LRFP was prepared in connection with the
City’s bankruptcy filing and shows the City’s return to fiscal health and to increase its
organization capacity to once again be cash, service and budget solvent. The
forecast is premised on the basis that tentative agreements reached with the City’s
capital market creditors and filed with the U.S. Bankruptcy court will be reached
upon confirmation of the Plan of Adjustment and many other variables. Though
these variables may change with time we have modeled likely fiscal performance in
a conservative and realistic manner. The forecast is prudently conservative but still
subject to risk that underlying assumptions made could change. However, we
believe this model will provide the foundation for future sustainability for the City.

For more detailed analysis of financial performance of the City, refer to the
Management’'s Discussion and Analysis sections titled Financial Analysis of the
City’s Funds and General Fund Budgetary Highlights.

THE LOCAL ECONOMY

In May 2014, Stockton officially broke the 300,000 population mark according to
newly-released California Department of Finance population estimates for 2014.
Stockton’s population now stands at 300,899, a 1.1% increase over last year’s
population estimate of 297,757. The UOP forecast projects that population will
continue to increase at a rate of 1.3% and 1.5% for 2015 and 2016. As the 13th
largest City in California, Stockton is now as big as or bigger than cities like
Pittsburgh, Orlando, Cincinnati, Buffalo, and Salt Lake City.

According to University of the Pacific’'s Eberhardt School of Business, Business
Forecasting Center, Northern California is expected to lead California’s economic
recovery primarily from the market rebound in the Silicon Valley and San Francisco.
It is anticipated the recovery will eventually begin to spread inland and will
outperform California’s expected overall job growth of 1.6% in 2014". The Stockton
Metro Area (which includes the City of Stockton and surrounding areas) will see
slower but gradual growth in its economy. Due to the deep recession the area faced
it is anticipated to lead job growth in the central valley at 3.7% in 2014 followed by
2.2% in 2015. Future trends for growth are expected to be gradual with
unemployment rates remaining at approximately 50% above the statewide rate and
about 150% above San Francisco-Bay Area rates.

'California & Metro Forecast, January 2014

RESERVE POLICIES

The City Council has adopted policies establishing minimum target levels of
unassigned fund balance to be maintained in the various funds.  The current
financial crisis and bankruptcy filing has prevented the City from achieving the
established policy reserves for the General Fund at June 30, 2013. Unassigned and
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available General Fund balance was $3.1 million at the end of the fiscal year
consistent with the Plan of Adjustment and will assist in beginning to build funds for
its mission critical needs such as years of deferred maintenance, a new financial
system, replacement of the aging public safety radio infrastructure, and plans to
rehabilitate City Hall. The $3.1 million was only achieved after using a one-time
refund of Property Tax Administration Fee settlement dollars, after protections
afforded by the bankruptcy filing, by significant and sweeping cuts made in prior
years, after defaulting on debt payments resulting in the loss of possession of
several important City assets and only after many years of depleting its general fund
reserves to zero just prior to the bankruptcy filing. The $3.1 million is insufficient for
a City of our size.

The current General Fund target reserve policy is due for a review and revision to
accommodate GFOA recommended best practices, and the Plan of Adjustment (as
amended) once confirmed. The City Council has indicated their support for the
GFOA recommended reserve level of two months worth of expenditures or 16.67%.

The City’s restricted Measure W and Municipal Utilities funds have achieved their
minimum reserve levels.

DEBT POLICIES AND ANNUAL CONTINUING DISCLOSURES
The City’s debt policies adopted by the City Council are available on the City of
Stockton Administrative Services web site as follows:

Capital Financing and Debt Management Policy
http://www .stocktongov.com/files/2008 CIPDebtPolicies. pdf

Policies and Procedures for Land-Secured Financing
http://www.stocktongov.com/files/2008LandSecuredDebtPolicies. pdf

The City’s annual financial disclosures are available on the Municipal Securities
Rulemaking Board's (“MSRB”) Electronic Municipal Market Access (“‘EMMA”)
website at http://emma.msrb.org.

INVESTMENT POLICY

The City adopts an investment policy annually that provides guidelines for the
prudent investment of the City’s cash balances. In late 2006 with the support of the
Budget, Finance and Economic Development Committee, the City Council
authorized the Administrative Services Department to contract for investment
portfolio management services. Effective July 1, 2007, the City entered into an
agreement with Chandler Asset Management for management of the City’s long-
term investment portfolio. Both the City’s long-term investment portfolio management
and daily liquid cash requirements are overseen by the Administrative Services
Department.

The City’s investment policy is posted to the City’s web site:
http://www.stocktongov.com/files/2012_2014_Investment_Policy.pdf
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CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The California Government Code, and the City's investment policy adopted in
compliance with that Code, defines how the City's cash can be invested. The City's
policy also outlines the principles for maximizing the efficiency of the City's cash
management operations while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the City. The
average rate of return on funds not held by fiscal agents for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2013 was 0.07%. The average rate earned for prior year was 1.70%. As of
June 30, 2013, the market value for the City's investments, excluding cash with fiscal
agents, totaled $273.2 million, which compares to current holdings at April 30, 2014
of $293.0 million. The City uses professional portfolio management for a portion of
its portfolio not needed for operations and contingencies in the next six months.
Cash required for operations is managed in highly liquid short-term investments by
the City's Treasury staff.

Additional information on the City's cash and investment management can be found
in Notes 1 and 2 in the notes to the financial statements.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND LIMITATIONS

The intent of the CAFR is to provide the City Council and the public with a solid
understanding of the City’s financial position. Management assumes responsibility
for the completeness, accuracy and reliability of the information presented in this
report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, City
management established an internal control framework intended to protect the City’s
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient, reliable information for
the preparation of the City’s financial statements.

The City’'s comprehensive system of internal controls is the subject of ongoing
review to improve the timeliness and accuracy of the CAFR, management reporting
and controls. In the nearly two dozen audits completed to date a large number of
significant and material weaknesses in the internal control structure have been found
and reported by management and the auditors, many due to use of an antiquated
financial system, the Finance team with the City’s new Internal Auditor, Moss Adams
LLP, have been engaged in an extensive review under its internal audit plan and risk
assessment to improve the City’s key controls, systems, and policies and
procedures. This important body of work will take place over 24 months and help
the City as it emerges from bankruptcy and will support restoring the City’s fiscal
health and sustainability.

Budgetary control is at the department level and has greatly improved for the
General Fund and at the fund level for all other funds. Fund transfers within like
categories of the same department require City Manager approval, and revisions to
increase appropriation authority above a department’'s original adopted budget
require City Council approval.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national annual award that
recognizes conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local
government financial reports. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
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government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR
with contents that conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.
Through 2010, the City received a Certificate of Achievement for the last 22
consecutive years. We believe our current report continues to conform to the
Certificate of Achievement program requirements. Due to other priorities such as
bankruptcy and getting the City’s fiscal house in order, the fiscal years 21011 throuth
2013 CAFR’s were not submitted for the award. Plans are in place to begin
submissions again with the 2014 CAFR.
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1655 North Main Street
Suite 355
Walnut Creek, California 94596

PUN & M{:GEAD%Y Phone: (925) 954-3300
A Fax: (925) 954-3350

www.pm-llp.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

City of Stockton
Stockton, California

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental:activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Cit Stockton, California (the
“City”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes he financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the:al

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United: States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevan preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether.due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions hese financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contain Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standar ire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial st -are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves perf rocedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The dures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
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To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Stockton

Stockton, California

Page 2

Emphasis of Matter
Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the City will continue as a going concern.
As discussed in Note 15 to the basic financial statements, the City filed a case on June 28, 2012 seeking
bankruptcy protection and adjustment of its liabilities under Chapter 9 of the United States Bankruptcy Code.
These conditions raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as going concern. Management’s plans
regarding those matters also are described in Note 15. The financial statements do not include any adjustments
that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Accounting Changes

Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 60, Accountmg an
Concession Arrangement; GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporti

of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position.
Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information N
Accounting principles generally accepted in the Uni tates of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison.dr , and schedules of funding progress for pensions and
OPEB on pages X-X and XX—-XX be presented to. supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economl historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary informati ‘cordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted .of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the 1nformat10& £ sistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other wl we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or prov1d any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements.

»,
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To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Stockton

Stockton, California

Page 3

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Walnut Creek, California
May 9, 2014

)
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2013

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is intended as an introduction to the City of
Stockton’s basic financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The purpose of the
MD&A is to provide readers information necessary to enhance the understanding of the City’s
financial condition, changes in financial condition and results of operations. Three principal
objectives are:

e to provide a narrative explanation of a the City's financial statements that enables
readers and investors to see the City through the eyes of management;

e to enhance the overall financial disclosure and provide the context within which
financial information should be analyzed; and

e to provide information about the quality of, and potential variability of, the City’s
change in net position and cash flow.

Where appropriate we include comparisons to the audited June 30, 2012 financial statements.
The information presented here should be considered with the information furnished in the
Letter of Transmittal, the opinion of the independent auditor’s in their report, and the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).

Analysis included here focus on the information presented in the CAFR. For more detailed
information about the Significant Financial Events described herein, it is recommended to go to
the City’s website that includes filings with the U.S. Bankruptcy Court, declarations by
management of the City, the 2012-2013 Pendency Plan Budget, long-term forecasts for the
General Fund, a second opinion offered by Management Partners about the City of Stockton’s
financial condition, and the City’s petition for protection under chapter 9 of the U.S. Bankruptcy
Code. Due to the delay in issuing the fiscal 2013 financial statements as described in the
Transmittal Letter, this MD&A will describe important uncertainties facing the City at June 30,
2013 that may have since been resolved or are ongoing. It is important for context that readers
compare the MD&A’s discussion of current events of fiscal year 2014 to those described in the
subsequent event footnotes included in the CAFR.

SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL EVENTS
Chapter 9 Filing

Over the past several years the City of Stockton absorbed painful service reductions and has
gone through a long and arduous effort to repair the damage to its finances caused by poor
fiscal management, previous City decisions based on the misguided belief in the seemingly
endless growth in regional fiscal fortunes, which when combined with the severe impacts of the
“Great Recession”, exhausted the City’s general financial reserves and burdened it with
obligations it could not pay. Those obligations had grown to exceed General Fund resources by
$26 million in fiscal year 2012-13 and unless addressed, would have continued to grow in future
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years. After an exhaustive process of self-examination, verification of City’s financial status by
staff and outside experts, and participation in a new State mandated mediation process (AB
506), the City Council made the courageous decision to apply for bankruptcy protection under
Chapter 9 of the federal bankruptcy code. On June 28, 2012, the City filed a petition for
bankruptcy protection.

The City Council adopted a 2012-13 Pendency Plan that balanced the General Fund budget by
including approximately $26 million in reductions to debt payments, salary and benefit
reductions, a two year phase-out of the Retiree Medical Insurance plan, and other measures.
The creditors affected by those decisions fought hard to deny the City’s eligibility for
bankruptcy for most of this fiscal year, causing the City to expend scarce resources defending its
actions. Finally on April 1, 2013, the federal bankruptcy court ruled that the City was indeed
insolvent and had met the required conditions to enter Chapter 9 bankruptcy.

During the period the City is in bankruptcy, it operates under the Pendency Plan. The
differences between payments required by contracts and the amount actually paid become
claims in bankruptcy and are resolved through negotiations and, ultimately, the Plan of
Adjustment submitted to the creditors for approval and to the bankruptcy court for
confirmation. The Plan of Adjustment is intended to bring the City’s debts in line with its
resources, both now and over time.

Though the City’s General Fund was insolvent, the Pendency Plan and bankruptcy affected
other City funds as follows:

1. Reductions in labor costs resulting from reductions in compensation and retiree medical
benefits costs in funds with labor costs.

2. General Fund subsidy reductions decreased revenue in the receiving funds and General
Fund debt reductions reduced expenses or transfers in other funds.

3. Cost of eligible services were transferred from Public Works and Public Safety to Gas
Tax and Measure W funds, respectively.

Bankruptcy Impact to Operations

There is a ripple effect from the filing for bankruptcy. The Pendency Plan Budget changes were
substantial and reduced the $26 million budgetary imbalance in annual expenditures by
impairing certain City obligations. Those reductions are detailed in the 2012-13 adopted Budget.
The most significant relate to cancellation of debt service payments paid by the General Fund,
cancellation of payments on lease obligations of certain leased City facilities, substantial
reduction in and the ultimate elimination of retiree health insurance contributions by the City,
and other significant changes to compensation and benefits of current employees. Although the
Filing resulted from insolvency in the City’s General Fund, contract obligations (i.e. retiree
health benefits, compensation) span the entire workforce of the City. Other funds, therefore, are
directly affected by the reductions; however, the City has worked extremely hard to preserve
the firewall between the City’s General Fund operations and its restricted fund operations. The
City has not impaired debt or contractual obligations specific to particular restricted funds such
as the City’s Utilities or borrowed from those funds to support its unrestricted funds.
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Severe workload increases and demands have resulted from bankruptcy mediation and
negotiations. The City has undergone an enormous effort for litigation support, data collection,
financial evaluation and legal filings. It has been shared that with competing demands on an
already reduced workforce, management’s ability to identify, monitor and address financial
management issues of the past on a timely basis has been compromised. The remaining staff
have struggled to keep up with these demands, normal day to day operations, and external
financial reporting. Substantial investigation and discovery of past financial records to uncover
years of inaccurate accounting was needed and exposed a cumbersome system for closing and
reporting the financial records, weak and obsolete financial management software, and
unmanaged risks and weak internal controls throughout the City. These conditions continue to
be obstacles to a full recovery for the City but new management has put strategic plans in place
to address these issues. Despite this challenging work environment, the City was able to work
with its independent auditors to produce the fiscal 2011, 2012 and 2013 CAFRs with unqualified
or “clean” opinions.

The ability of the City Council, the City’s staff and the community to identify problems with its
financial structure and systems and to take decisive action to correct its problems was a major
highlight of the year. Strong teamwork, collaborative negotiations and extensive analysis of
options supporting a transparent process prepared the foundation for successful restructuring
of obligations and access to new resources. The City swiftly and effectively used its budget,
labor negotiations, and, finally, chapter 9 to dramatically arrest its decline and improve its
future prospects.

Reserves are Insufficient

The General Fund unrestricted fund balance is far below reserve levels in the City Council
Policy or recommended by the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) offering little
protection in the event of a severe economic downturn. Despite the achievements of fiscal 2013,
the City of Stockton still faces challenges that the reader should take into account when using
the information provided in this report.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) Government-wide
financial statements, 2) Fund financial statements, and 3) Notes to the financial statements. In
addition to the basic financial statements, this report includes other supplementary information.

Government-wide financial statements

Government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of the City’s finances and information about the activities of the City as a whole, in a manner
similar to a private-sector business using full accrual basis of accounting. The government-wide
financial statements include 1) the statement of net position and 2) the statement of activities.
Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover a significant portion of their costs through user fees
and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include public
safety, public works, land use regulation and development review and inspection, libraries,
parks and recreation programs, and general government services. The business-type activities
of the City include the water utility, wastewater utility and stormwater utilities, the central
parking district, municipal golf courses and the solid waste franchise.
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This CAFR includes Stockton Public Financing Authority financial activity of separate legal
entity controlled by the City.

The Successor Agency’s activities are reported as a private-purpose trust fund in the CAFR.
The City Council sits as the Successor Agency to the Stockton Redevelopment Agency’s Board;
however, all actions pertaining to the Successor Agency’s obligations are made by the Successor
Agency Oversight Board, which is comprised of members representing the interests of local
jurisdictions affected by redevelopment activities and revenue claims, including the City.

The statement of net position presents information on all City assets, liabilities, and deferred
inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference between the four reported as net position.
Over time, increases or decreases in net position, deferred outflows liabilities and deferred
inflows may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as
the underlying event occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in
future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes, earned but unused vacation leave).

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 40-42 of this report.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives, or as required by legal enabling
legislation. The City of Stockton uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with legal reporting requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as focus on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating the City’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
government’s near-term financing decisions. Reconciliations are provided to facilitate this
comparison for both the governmental funds’ balance sheet and the governmental funds’
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances.

The City maintains several individual governmental funds organized according to their
category type. The governmental fund category types are the General Fund, special revenue,
debt service, capital projects, and permanent funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds’ balance sheet and in the governmental funds’ statement of revenues,

7



DRAFT

expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, HOME Program Loans, Low-
Moderate Income Housing City Loans and Capital Improvement funds, which are reported as
major funds. Data from the remaining non-major governmental funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of the non-major governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements in the later sections of this report.

The City adopts an annual budget for its General Fund and various other funds. A budgetary
comparison schedule has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with
the budget. Budgetary comparison schedules for various other governmental funds are also
provided in later sections of this report.

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 43-48 of this report.

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are generally used to account for activities for which the
City charges a fee to either its external or internal customers. Proprietary funds provide the
same type of information as in the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.
The City maintains two types of proprietary funds:

= Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to
account for the operations of the Water Utility, Wastewater Utility, Stormwater Utility
and Central Parking District, which are reported as major funds. Data for the remaining
non-major enterprise funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
Additional information is provided for each of these non-major enterprise funds in the
later sections of this report.

» Internal service funds are used to report activities that provide goods and services for
certain City insurance, pension and other related programs and activities. The City uses
internal service funds to account for its self-insurance programs, pension obligations,
active and retired employee health benefit insurance, fleet of vehicles, information
technology systems, and radio and other equipment.

Because these services predominately benefit governmental rather than business-type
functions, they have been included within the governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The internal service funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual
fund information for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining
statements in the later sections in this report. This represents generally accepted practice
for reporting these funds. However, it should be noted that this disclosure does not
provide detailed information about the relative shares of accrued and actuarial liabilities
for business type and government type funds and activities. In normal operations this
distinction does not have material implications for the reader. However, in bankruptcy,
the relative share of costs and accrued or actuarial liabilities in solvent and insolvent
funds and legal limits on the use of resources for specific purposes becomes important in
restructuring obligations, like Pension Obligation Bonds (POB). The City of Stockton’s
proposed Plan of Adjustment and negotiations with creditors reflects, where feasible,
proportional, allowed uses of the resources of solvent funds to restructure citywide
obligations.
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The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 49-56 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. The fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. This includes resources related to land secured financing,
employee payroll withholdings, area of benefit fees, public facilities pass through fees, and
other miscellaneous fiduciary activities. The City’s fiduciary funds are reported as agency funds
and are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements since the resources of the
funds are not available to support the City’s own programs and services.

The City has established a new private-purpose trust fund (agency fund) effective February 1,
2012 for purposes of accounting for the winding down of the Successor Agency.

The basic fiduciary funds financial statement can be found on pages 57-60 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements.

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the financial information provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 61-156 of this
report.

Other information.

In addition to the basic financial statements, this report presents certain required
supplementary information. This information provides a budgetary comparison schedule for
the City’s General Fund, HOME Program Loans Fund, and the Low-Moderate Income Housing
City Loans Fund as well as information about the City’s participation in the CalPERS and PARS
defined benefit pension plans, and the City’s defined other post-employment benefits (OPEB).
Required supplementary information can be found on pages 157-164 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds,
non-major enterprise funds, and internal service funds are presented immediately following the
required supplementary information.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net Position of the City

Net position serves as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the
City of Stockton, assets exceed liabilities by $1,259 million at the close of the fiscal year, which is
a $71.8 million increase, or 6.0%, from 2012 total net position. Of this increase, $69.6 million is
attributable to governmental activities and $2.1 million to business-type activities. The increase
in the governmental activities is most significantly impacted by decrease in city program
expenses of $61.1 million and increase in program revenues of $9.5 million primarily consisting
of operating and capital grants and contributions.

The largest component of the City of Stockton’s net position is its investment in capital assets of
$1,144.3 million (e.g., land and easements, buildings and improvements, infrastructure,
intangible assets and equipment), net of any related outstanding debt used to acquire these
assets.
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The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these are not
available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported
net of related debt, the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be liquidated to reduce these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net position, $118.2 million or 9.3%, represents resources that
are subject to various external restrictions on how they may be used. Net position classified for
capital assets and restricted assets amount to more than 100%, reflecting the fact that, in
aggregate, the City’s resources are entirely committed in illiquid capital assets or are restricted
in their uses. The net result is a deficit of $3.9 million in unrestricted net position for the City of
which governmental activities were a $77.2 million deficit and business-type activities were
$73.3 million positive. Deficit in unrestricted net position is an indicator of the dire financial
situation of the City’s governmental activities as of June 30, 2013.

Also, current Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) do not provide for fully
recording unfunded actuarial liabilities as liabilities in the financial statements. The difference
between the actuarially required contributions and contributions made for other post-
employment benefits since the implementation of GASB Statement 45 is $120.5 million. In
addition, the actuarial liability for self-insurance claims is recorded based on a 70% confidence
level, consistent with prior years. As described in footnotes 11, 12, and 13, the balance of City’s
unfunded actuarial liabilities for its pension plan, its self-insurance program, and its retiree
health benefit plan, respectively totaling $326.6 million are not recorded as liabilities in the
City’s Statement of Net Position but are disclosed consistent with GAAP.

The accounting and reporting for chapter 9 bankruptcies is provided in GASB Statement No. 58,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Chapter 9 Bankruptcies and requires governments that have
filed for bankruptcy to disclose among other things, the pertinent conditions and events giving
rise to the petition for bankruptcy, the expected gain, and the effects upon services. Though
certain obligations of the City’s general fund are in default as of June 30, 2013, the outstanding
obligation, net of those paid by bond insurers, related to those defaults continues to remain
outstanding until the Plan of Adjustment is confirmed by the United States Bankruptcy Court.
Proceeds received from the bond insurers to pay debt service on the bonds for those obligations
that are insured, are reported as an Other Financing Source in the fund and are included as a
current obligation in long-term debt. Once the Plan is confirmed a write down of those
liabilities will occur resulting in a corresponding gain to the City. In addition, though the City
has lost its possessory interest in certain leased assets (e.g. parking garages and 400 East Main)
as a result of the default, the City continues to hold title to the assets and those assets are still
included in the capital assets of the City. The possessory interest only grants the Trustee the
right to the use of the buildings and structures, but they do not have the ability to transfer,
assign, or sell those assets. In addition, certain other obligations of the City are subject to the
stay in bankruptcy, which prevents the creditor from pursuing the City for payment. These
debts are claims in the bankruptcy and are subject to final adjustment through the City’s Plan of
Adjustment in bankruptcy. The details of the Plan of Adjustment are available on the City’s
website.

The following table presents the government-wide assets, liabilities, and net position for both
2013 and 2012.
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City of Stockton's Net Position
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Assets:
Current and other assets 428,623 406,220 144,234 134,661 | $ 572,857 $ 540,881
Capital assets 816,273 788,143 770,116 783,208 1,586,389 1,571,351

Total assets 1,244,896 1,194,363 914,350 917,869 2,159,246 2,112,232
Liabilities:
Current and other liabilities 47,936 55,112 16,122 12,238 64,058 67,350
Long-term liabilities 334,309 343,210 384,378 391,233 718,687 734,443
Net OPEB obligation 125,671 123,534 - - 125,671 123,534

Total liabilities 507,916 521,856 400,500 403,471 908,416 925,327
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 725,427 703,266 418,881 432,082 1,144,308 1,135,348
Restricted 93,905 93,162 24,315 27,976 118,220 121,138
Unrestricted (82,352) (123,921) 70,654 54,340 (11,698) (69,581)
Total net position $ 736,980 $ 672,507 | $ 513,850 $ 514,398 { $ 1,250,830 $ 1,186,905

Governmental activities. Total assets for governmental activities increased by $50.5 million,
with current and other assets in governmental activities increasing by $22.4 million and capital
assets increasing by $28.1 million. This is primarily due to $55.7 million in new construction
projects and asset purchases offset with $4.6 million in net retirements and current year
depreciation on assets of $23.0 million.

Total governmental activities liabilities decreased by $13.9 million, with current and other
liabilities decreasing by $7.2 million, long-term liabilities decreasing by $8.9 million, net OPEB
obligations increasing by $2.1 million. The $8.9 million decrease in long-term liabilities reflects
a reduction of $9.9 million in compensated absences resulting from negotiated change in sick
leave cash out and a reduction of $6.8 million of long-term self-insurance claims and judgments
for property-casualty general liability, workers’ compensation and health insurances. These
reductions are further reduced by $10.6 million of scheduled repayments offset by $18.5 million
from bond insurer reimbursements and minor additional borrowings.

Of the $64.5 million increase in total net position of governmental activities, net investment in
capital assets increased by $22.2 million, restricted assets increased by $742 thousand, which
was offset by decrease in deficit unrestricted net position of $41.6 million during the year. This
results in a deficit unrestricted net position balance of $82.4 million.

Business-type activities. Total assets for business-type activities decreased by $0.5 million or
0.1%, with current and other assets increasing by $9.6 million and capital assets decreasing by
$13.1 million.
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Total liabilities decreased by $3.0 million or 0.7%, with current and other liabilities increasing by
$3.9 million and long-term liabilities decreasing by $6.9 million. Total net position for business-
type activities decreased by $0.5 million, or 0.1%.

Of the $0.5 million total decrease in net position, net investment in capital assets decreased by
$13.2 million and restricted net position decreased by $3.7 million. Business-type activities
unrestricted net position increased by $16.3 million, which is comprised of increases of $2.4
million in the Water Utility, $12.6 million in Wastewater Utility, $1.1 million in Stormwater
Utility and a net $0.3 million in the Other Enterprise Funds. Increase in Wastewater Utility is a
result of 9% rate increase in current fiscal year that was part of multi-year rate increases
approved by the City Council in August 2010 for fiscal years through 2015.

Change in Net Position of the City

The City’s total program revenues of $403.4 million exceed total expenses of $339.5 million for
an increase in overall net position of $63.9 million. This increase is related to the City’s
governmental activities as detailed in the table on the following page.
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City of Stockton's Change in Net Position
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 05 2012 2013 2012
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 49509 $  43355|% 102939 $ 95078 |$% 152448 § 133,433
Operating grants and
contributions 23,827 20,460 4,175 4,175 28,002 24,635
Capital grants and contributions 57,146 54,487 4,700 10,139 61,846 64,626
General revenues:
Property taxes 29,420 32,772 - - 29,420 32,772
In lieu of sales tax 9,938 8,392 - - 9,938 8,392
Utility user taxes 31,941 31,505 - - 31,941 31,505
Sales and use taxes (City levied) 9,086 8,576 - - 9,086 8,576
Franchise taxes 11,677 12,465 - - 11,677 12,465
Business licenses 10,153 9,873 - - 10,153 9,873
Hotel/motel room taxes 2,005 1,933 - - 2,005 1,933
Document transfer taxes 458 603 - - 458 603
Other taxes 287 159 1,197 1,205 1,484 1,364
Motor vehicle fees in lieu 17,433 17,734 - - 17,433 17,734
Sales and use taxes (State levied) 34,031 32,604 - - 34,031 32,604
Other shared revenue 400 - - - 400 -
Investment earnings 123 2,802 530 1,865 653 4,667
Miscellaneous 2,411 974 13 (18,012) 2,424 (17,038)
Gain on sale of capital assets 1) - - - )] -
Total revenues 289,844 278,694 113,554 94,450 403,398 373,144
Expenses
General government 24,909 41,548 - - 24,909 41,548
Public safety 108,931 154,230 - - 108,931 154,230
Public works 49,259 34,635 - - 49,259 34,635
Library 8,445 10,176 - - 8,445 10,176
Parks and recreation 19,736 20,760 - - 19,736 20,760
Interest and fiscal charges 14,615 20,529 - - 14,615 20,529
Water utility - - 48,570 30,162 48,570 30,162
Wastewater utility - - 51,166 51,530 51,166 51,530
Stormwater utility - - 5,959 6,685 5,959 6,685
Central parking district - - 4,944 4,903 4,944 4,903
Other - - 2,939 3,750 2,939 3,750
Total expenses 225,895 281,878 113,578 97,030 339473 378,908
Increase/ decrease in net
assets before transfers 63,949 (3,184) (24) (2,580) 63,925 (5,764)
Transfers 524 1,718 (524) (1,718) - -
Extraordinary gain - 75,350 - - - 75,350
Change in net position 64,473 73,884 (548) (4,298) 63,925 69,586
Net position, beginning, original 672,507 598,623 514,398 508,796 1,186,905 1,107,419
Prior period adjustments - - - 9,900 - 9,900
Net position, beginning, as restated 672,507 598,623 514,398 518,696 1,186,905 1,117,319
Net position, end of year $ 736,980 672,507 | $ 513,850 $ 514,398 | $ 1,250,830 $ 1,186,905
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Governmental activities. Program revenue associated with Governmental Activities totaled
$130.5 million, or 59% of program expenditures. Expenditures not covered by program
revenues must be funded from non-program sources like general tax revenues. In the chart
below, the program revenue and expense bars illustrate the gap between program revenues and
expenditures by major activity. Public safety programs rely heavily on taxes to support
operations. General government programs provide benefit to both business-type and
governmental activities and receive some funding through internal indirect cost allocations to
supplement program revenue and general tax revenue.

FY 2012-13 PROGRAM REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
(in millions)
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The pie chart below illustrates the distribution of total revenues of $289.8 million among its
various sources. The largest revenue sources for governmental activities are charges for services
of $49.5 million or 17% and capital grants/contributions of $57.1 million or 20% of total
revenues. Property tax and sales & use tax are also significant revenue sources for the City’s
governmental activities, amounting to 10% and 15%, respectively. The remaining 38% of
revenue for governmental activities comes from special taxes, franchise fee revenue, operating
grants and other intergovernmental revenues.
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FY 2012-13 REVENUES BY SOURCE -
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
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charges for 8% capital grants/
miscellaneous & gervices contributions
investment 17% 20%
carn g B property taxes
vehicle 1% , : /_ 10%
license fees ) =
6% In lieu of sales tax
other taxes 3%
1%
business licenses utility user tax

4% franchise fees sales & use tax e

4% 15%

Total government activities revenues increased by $11.2 million, or 4%, compared to the prior
year due primarily to increase in charges for services of $6.2 million or 14% and the increase in
operating and capital grants and contribution of $6.0 million or 8%.

Changes in City’s general revenues occurred as follows:

» General Fund property taxes decreased by $3.4 million or 10%. Property taxes have declined
significantly since fiscal year 2007-2008 due to declining residential home values and
foreclosures in the Central Valley, resulting in a devaluation of the City’s assessed valuation
performed by San Joaquin County. Since fiscal year 2007-2008 the assessed values in San
Joaquin County have declined from over $62.6 billion prior to the Great Recession to as low
as $53.2 billion (FY 2012-2013), a drop of 15 percent. For the City of Stockton, assessed
values as reported by San Joaquin County declined 1.56% from FY 2011-12. Fiscal year
2013-2014 will be the first year since 2007 that the assessed value roll countywide has
increased.

* There were increases of $1.4 million in sales and use tax and an approximate $500,000 in
sales tax levied by the City (Measure W). The combined sales and use tax-related revenue
growth of 4.4% reflects an increase in taxable sales activity in several categories, the largest
of which were new car sales and gasoline sales. The latter resulted from higher fuel prices.

* Investment earnings decreased $2.7 million or 95.6%. This was due to significant decline in
market value of investments in the last quarter of fiscal year 2013, which substantially offset
the earnings on the investments during the fiscal year. The average rate of return on the
City's general investment pool declined from 1.70% in fiscal year 2012 to 0.70% in fiscal year
2013.
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Capital grants and contributions total $57.1 million or 43.8% of the City’s total governmental
activities program revenues, an increase of $2.7 million from the prior year. Capital grants and
contributions include the following;:

$1.3 million in contributions of capital assets from developers;

$18.0 million in Measure K funding to fund projects including $5.5 million Lower
Sacramento road widening/UPRR, $3.9 million French Camp/Sperry Road/Performance
Road extension, $3.1 million Arch and Sperry Road extension, $2.6 million for Eight Mile
road/Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) East Grade Separation, $2.5 million for Eight Mile
road/UPRR West separation.

$29.0 million in federal and state grant revenues expended on projects such as $7.9 million
in Arch and Sperry Road extension, $5.2 million for street overlay and rubberized cape seal,
$4.0 million French Camp/Sperry Road/Performance Road extension, $2.9 million for Eight
Mile road/UPRR West separation, $1.4 million for Eight Mile road/Union Pacific Railroad
(UPRR) East Grade Separation, $1.0 for Bus Rapid Transit Phase III, and $6.6 on other street
improvements and energy efficiency projects.

$6.6 million in Gas Tax for street related projects.

$2.2 million in various local capital grants and contributions.

Operating grants and contributions total $23.8 million or 18% of the City’s total governmental
activities program revenues, an increase of $3.4 million from the prior year. Operating grants
and contributions include the following:

$16.7 million in federal and state grant revenues expended on programs such as housing
$13.0 million, police and fire safety $3.0 million, and library, recycling, and other public
works $0.7 million.

$5.0 million in county library contributions

$2.1 million in various other local operating grants and contributions

Program expenses for governmental activities decreased by $56.0 million, or 19.9%. Key
changes in governmental expenses occurred as follows:

Public works increased by $14.6 million, or 42.2%, primarily due to increased costs
associated with housing loan programs and depreciation of the City’s capital assets.

Public safety decreased by $45.3 million, or 29.4%, due to negotiated concessions on salary
and benefits and staffing reductions.

Parks and recreation decreased by $1.0 million, or 4.9%, primarily due to negotiated
concessions on salary and benefits and workers ‘compensation and general liability
allocations.

Library costs decreased by $1.7 million, or 17.0%, primarily due to negotiated concessions
on salary and benefits, reduction in operating costs and workers ‘compensation and general
liability allocations.

General government expenses decreased by $16.6 million, or 40.0%, primarily due to due to
negotiated concessions on salary and benefits and staffing reductions and legal costs
associated with AB 506 process.

Interest and fiscal charges decreased by $5.9 million, or 28.8%, due to full year exclusion of
the former Redevelopment Agency revenue bonds combined with lower interest expense on
the remaining debt.
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Business-type activities. The City operates three enterprise funds that offer water, wastewater
and stormwater services to Stockton residents.

The water utility treats and distributes clean drinking water and performs repair and
maintenance functions of existing wells, reservoirs, and water lines, as well as builds additional
water distribution system capital improvements through its capital improvement master plan.
The wastewater utility collects, treats, and disposes of sewer, and builds additional wastewater
collection system capital improvements through its capital improvement master plan. The
stormwater utility collects drainage and disposes of stormwater runoff from City streets and
builds additional storm drainage distribution system capital improvements through its capital
improvement master plan. The wastewater and stormwater enterprises also perform repair and
maintenance functions of existing wastewater and stormwater mains, pump stations, and
treatment facilities. Other enterprise functions, such as the central parking facilities, downtown
marina, and municipal golf courses, are also business-type activities of the City.

FY 2012-13 PROGRAM REVENUES AND EXPENSES
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
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Business-type activities accounted for a $0.5 million increase in the City’s net position. The bar
chart above illustrates how total program revenues and expenses compare. Program revenues
exceeded program expenses for one of the five enterprise categories, wastewater by $5.2 million.
Increase in Wastewater Utility is a result of 9% rate increase in current fiscal year that was part
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of multi-year rate increases approved by the City Council in August 2010 for fiscal years 2011
through 2015.

Central parking operating income decreased $0.9 million primarily due to reduction in charges
for services of $0.8 million, which is the result of trustee taking possessory interest in three City
parking garages. Fees for use of these parking facilities are no longer recorded as revenues in
the fund. In addition, $0.8 million was used to pay for a share of debt service payments on the
SEB building. Water, Stormwater and other nonmajor enterprise funds operated at nearly
breakeven this year.

Both wastewater and stormwater conducted a fee and charges for services rate study in fiscal
year 2010-2011. Wastewater utility rates have been increased through a proposition 218 vote
that passed in August 2010 to cover increased operating costs and meet required coverage
ratios. The rate increases are phased in over a five year period beginning in fiscal year 2010-11
and include an adjustment mechanism to account for inflation. A Proposition 218 stormwater
ballot initiative for a “Clean Water Fee” was also undertaken that year, but failed to get voter
approval. In 2011, there was also a water rate increase under the water rate study, approved in
2010 as part of funding for the multi-year Delta Water Supply Project. The 2013 rate increase
was 10%.

The pie chart below illustrates the distribution of business-type revenues by category. All the
City’s business-type activities rely heavily on charges for services to fund their operations,
comprising 91% of total business-type revenues. Capital/operating grants and contributions
revenues comprise 8% and parking assessments (other taxes) and investment earnings are 1% of
total revenues.

FY 2012-13 REVENUES BY SOURCE -
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
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Business-type activities program revenue increased overall by $19.1 million, or 20%. Charges
for services revenue increased $7.9 million over the prior year, or 8.3% due to the rate increases
in water and wastewater described above. Operating grants and contributions stayed the same
as in prior year. Capital grants and contributions decreased $5.4 million, or 54%. This decrease
is due to a Proposition 84 Grant received from the State of California for the Delta Water Supply
Project of $3.6 million in prior year, and decrease in capital and developer contributions of $1.8
million overall in the Water, Wastewater and Stormwater funds. It is important to note that
these revenues were one-time in nature and cannot be used to fund operating costs, which may
serve to obscure the need for rate increases.

Investment earnings in business-type activities total $0.5 million, a decrease of $1.3 million or
72% from fiscal year 2012, due to decline in market value of investments in the last quarter of
fiscal year 2013, which substantially offset the earnings on the investments during the fiscal
year. This was coupled with a decline in cash held by fiscal agents for bond project accounts.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City of Stockton uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal reporting requirements. This financial analysis of the
major governmental and proprietary funds provides an overview of the City’s financial
performance. The financial analysis tables in the following section provide summary financial
information of the City’s major and internal service funds’ asset and liabilities balances and
current year transactions, along with prior year comparative information. '

Governmental funds

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions,
establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent
to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources
reported in governmental funds. The statement provides fund balance categories and
classifications as non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned (Note 1R).
The fund balance note disclosures also give users information necessary to understand the
processes under which constraints are imposed upon the use of resources and how those
constraints may be modified or eliminated. The financial analysis information provided in the
following tables is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular,
committed, assigned and unassigned fund balances may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

Total for the governmental funds fund balance of $93.8 million increased by $13.9 million
compared to the prior year. Of the total governmental fund balances, $0.8 million is non-
spendable, $83.1 million is restricted, $10.7 million is committed, $18.0 million is assigned,
resulting in overall deficit unassigned fund balance of $18.8 million. The deficit is a result of the
Howard-Jarvis Settlement payable from general fund debt service to water and wastewater.
Until a Plan of Adjustment is confirmed by the United States Bankruptcy Court, the amount
remains outstanding under accounting standards.

General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City and reflects financial activity related to
many tax-supported services provided to Stockton citizens. The total fund balance increased by
$16.7 million compared to the prior year. At the end of the fiscal year, current assets exceed
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current liabilities by $31.3 million and there were no noncurrent assets or liabilities. Cash and
investment balances increased by approximately $16.3 million from the prior year balances, to
total $27.0 million at June 30, 2013. Of importance in this analysis is that the City’s General
Fund includes certain other funds of the City that are restricted such as the City’s Library
system it operates for the County, Entertainment Venues, and other programs that are subject to
user fees and charges to support its operations. The City’s General Fund alone ended the year
with $11.4 million in cash and investments, which is a significant improvement from prior year
of $1.5 million. The increase in cash and investments was a result of the drastic measures taken
by the City Council in February 2012 and a subsequent bankruptcy filing in June 2012 to allow
the City to curtail its debts and impair its obligations in the 2012-13 Pendency Plan Budget.
Should those events not take place, the City’s General Fund would not have had sufficient cash
to continue to operate during the fiscal year.

General Fund Financial Analysis
(% in millions)

2013 2012 Variance

Balance Sheets
Cash and investments $ 270 % 107 $ 163
Other current assets 19.9 20.2 0.3)
Current liabilities (15.6) (15.2) 0.4)
Net current assets (liabilities) 31.3 15.7 15.6
Noncurrent assets - - -
Noncurrent liabilities - (1.1) 11
Net noncurrent assets (liabilities) - (1.1) 1.1

Total Fund Balance, End of Year $ 313 % 146 $ 167

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues $ 1737 $ 1699 $ 3.8
Expenditures (154.7) (162.3) 7.6
Other financing sources (uses) (2.3) (5.2 29
Net change in Fund Balance 16.7 24 14.3
Total Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 14.6 12.2 2.4
Total Fund Balance, End of Year $ 313 % 146 $§ 167
Fund Balances:

Nonspendable $ 04 $ 03 % 0.1
Restricted $ 22§ 21§ 0.1
Committed $ 107 $ 81 % 26
Assigned $ 149 $ 41 $ 108
Unassigned $ 31 $ - $ 3.1

Fiscal year 2013 General Fund revenues were above prior year totals by $3.8 million reflecting
recoveries from recessionary impacts on City’s General Fund property tax and sales tax
revenues. Property tax revenues, including those in lieu of sales tax, increased by
approximately $4.6 million. This was primarily attributable to a one-time receipt of Property
Tax Administrative Fee refund of $3.1 million from San Joaquin County, which resulted from a
court ruling earlier in the year. Sales and use tax revenue was up $1.1 million. However,
charges for services decreased $2.1 million. This was caused by $0.7 million decrease in code
enforcement fees due to discontinuation of the Teeter Plan by the County and $1.9 million
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decrease in fire districts contract fees due to reduction in fire personnel expenditures
implemented as part of the 2012-13 Pendency Plan as well as change in billing rates.

General Fund Revenue Actuals by Source Category - FY 2011-12 vs. FY 2012-13
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Expenditures decreased from the prior year by $7.6 million reflecting primarily imposed
concessions resulting from the implementation of the pendency plan aimed to balance the 2012-
13 general fund budget while in bankruptcy protection. These reductions were offset with $2.9
million increase in bankruptcy costs.

Other financing sources (transfers) decreased from the prior year by $2.9 million largely due to
elimination of certain General Fund backed debt obligations of approximately $2.6 million,
which have been stayed under the chapter 9 bankruptcy. In addition during fiscal year 2012,
General Fund transferred $1.1 million to the Redevelopment Agency, which was dissolved in
February 2012. Subsidy to the established Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency is
recorded as program expenditures for fiscal year 2013 financial statements presentation
purposes. These decreases were offset with $0.8 million increase in transfer for program
support.
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General Fund Expenditures Actual by Services Program FY 2011-12 vs. FY 2012-13

(in Millions)
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At the end of this fiscal year, the total fund balance for the General Fund of $31.3 million
includes non-spendable fund balance of approximately $0.4 million, restricted fund balance of
$2.2 million, committed fund balance of $10.7 million, assigned fund balance of $18.0 million,
and zero unassigned fund balance. As a measure of the General Fund'’s liquidity, it is useful to
compare assigned and unassigned fund balances of $18.0 million to the General Fund’s total
expenditures of $157.0 million, amounting to only 11.5% solely from assigned funds. Though
this ratio has improved from 2.4% in prior year, these funds have already been appropriated by
City Council.

HOME Fund

The Stockton First-Time Homebuyer Program is managed by the Economic Development
Department and funded through U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development HOME
funds. The program offers equity sharing deferred home financing loans to qualified
homeowners. Cash and investment balances decreased by approximately $400,000 from prior
year due to increased expenditures from operations.
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HOME Fund
($ in millions)

2013 2012 Variance

Balance Sheets
Cash and investments $ 03 % 07 $ (04
Other current assets - 0.2 0.2)
Current liabilities - (0.1) 0.1
Net current assets (liabilities) 0.3 0.8 (0.5)
Noncurrent assets 35.4 304 5.0
Noncurrent liabilities (35.4) (30.4) (5.0)
Net noncurrent assets (liabilities) - - -

Total Fund Balance, End of Year $ 03 % 08 $ (05

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues $ 42 % 17 % 25
Expenditures 4.7) (1.0 (3.7)
Net change in Fund Balance (0.5) 0.7 (1.2)
Total Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 0.8 0.1 0.7
Total Fund Balance, End of Year $ 03 $ 08 $ (05
Nonspendable $ - % - $ -
Restricted $ 03 $ 08 $ (0.5
Committed $ -5 - $ -
Assigned $ - $ - $ -
Unassigned $ - 8 - $ -

Revenues for 2013 increased by $2.5 million and expenditures increased by $3.7 million
compared to the prior year. The increase in revenue is due to an increase in federal
reimbursements from the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development and
increase in principal and interest payments on the loans. Revenues increased consistent with
increases in expenditures due to increased HOME program activity.

Low-Moderate Income Housing City Loans Fund

The Low-Moderate Income Housing Fund accounts for loans to non-profit developers and
property owners for rehabilitation and/or construction of housing units, which are deed
restricted for occupancy by low-and-moderate income households. The total fund balance
remains consistent with prior year of $3.1 million. At the end of the fiscal year, current assets
exceed current liabilities by $3.1 million.
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Low-Moderate Income Housing Fund Financial Analysis
($ in millions)

2013 2012 Variance

Balance Sheets
Cash and investments $ 01 $ 01 $ -
Other current assets 3.0 11 19
Current liabilities - - -
Net current assets (liabilities) 3.1 1.2 1.9
Noncurrent assets 54.5 55.6 (1.1
Noncurrent liabilities (54.5) (53.7) 0.8)
Net noncurrent assets (liabilities) - 1.9 (1.9)

Total Fund Balance, End of Year $ 31 % 31 $ -

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues $ 04 % 01 $ 0.3
Expenditures 0.2) - 0.2)
Other financing sources (uses) 0.2) - 0.2)
Extraordinary item - 3.0 (3.0)
Net change in Fund Balance - 3.1 (3.1)
Total Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 31 - 3.1
Total Fund Balance, End of Year $ 31 % 31 $ -
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable $ - 5 - 8 -
Restricted $ 31 $ 31§ -
Committed $ - 8 - $ -
Assigned $ - $ - $ -
Unassigned $ - $ - $ -

Revenues for fiscal year 2013 increased by $0.3 million and expenditures increased by $0.2
million compared to the prior year. The increase in revenue is due to increase in repayment of
principal on the loans. The increase in expenditure is attributable to increase in program
activities.

Capital Improvement Project Fund
The Capital Improvement Fund accounts for the acquisition, construction, and improvement of
capital facilities financed by grants, capital lease proceeds and transfers from other City funds.
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Capital Improvement Fund Financial Analysis
($ in millions)

2013 2012 Variance

Balance Sheets
Cash and investments $ - $ - $ -
Other current assets 17.6 23.2 (5.6)
Current liabilities (15.2) (20.9) 57
Net current assets (liabilities) 24 2.3 0.1
Noncurrent assets - - -
Noncurrent liabilities - - -
Net noncurrent assets (liabilities) - - -

Total Fund Balance, End of Year $ 24 % 23 % 0.1

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

2013 2012 Variance
Revenues $ 309 5 311 % 0.2)
Expenditures (56.1) (32.4) (23.7)
Other financing sources (uses) 25.3 0.6 24.7
Special items - - -
Net change in Fund Balance 0.1 0.7) 0.8
Total Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 2.3 3.0 0.7)
Total Fund Balance, End of Year $ 24 % 23 % 0.1
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable $ -8 - 38 -
Restricted $ 24 % 23 % 0.1
Committed $ - $ - $ -
Assigned $ - $ - $ -
Unassigned $ - 8 - 8 -

As the table above details, expenditures exceeded revenues by $25.2 million. Revenues
decreased from the prior year by $0.2 million due to a decrease in PG&E reimbursement and
county withholding of distribution of other revenue. Expenditures totaled $56.1 million, which
is $23.7 million higher than the prior year due to increased expenditures for various street
related projects funded by capital grants. The $24.7 million increase in other financing sources
is due to change in financial statement presentation of capital projects other financing sources
and uses, which are reported at gross in fiscal year 2013. The decrease of $5.6 million in other
current assets was due to the decrease in receivables from other governments resulting from
payment on outstanding reimbursement claims for various street related projects.

The entire $2.4 million fund balance is restricted for ongoing capital projects.
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Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds consist of enterprise funds and internal service funds. The proprietary funds’
financial statements provide additional detailed information not found in the government-wide
financial statements. Both presentations are accounted for on the full accrual accounting basis.
Each funds’ financial transactions, both near-term and historic, is provided in the statement of
net position and the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

Total net position of all the enterprise funds totaled $516.5 million, an increase of $2.1 million
from the prior year. In fiscal year 2013, the Stormwater Utility fund experienced an operating
loss of $0.2 million. Operating losses signal that an enterprise’s operating revenue structure is
not meeting standard operating and infrastructure renewal and replacement cost needs. This is
the twelfth consecutive year that the Stormwater Utility Fund has ended the year with an
operating loss. A stormwater utility ballot initiative that would have resulted in increased rates
failed to achieve voter approval in 2010.

At the end of the fiscal year, enterprise unrestricted net position balances are as follows: Water
Utility, $42.0 million; the Wastewater Utility, $28.1 million; and the Stormwater Utility, $3.9
million. The Central Parking District reports deficit unrestricted net position of $0.1 million.
The Garden Refuse, Downtown Marina Complex and Golf funds are combined for financial
reporting purposes and together have deficit unrestricted net position of $0.7 million.

The City’s internal service funds are reported in the following two categories in the
supplementary information section of the CAFR:

1) insurance/ pension-related funds, and
2) equipment-related funds

Total internal service fund net position increased by $11.8 million to reduce overall deficit to
$146.2 million. Of the $146.2 million deficit, $9.2 million is net investment in capital assets, $12.5
million is restricted for fleet and equipment replacement, and the balance is an unrestricted
deficit totaling $168.0 million. The deficit unrestricted net position arises from the
insurance/ pension-related funds.

Enterprise Funds Financial Analysis

Water Utility Fund

The Water Utility Fund accounts for activities associated with the acquisition or construction of
water treatment facilities, production, distribution and transmission of potable water to users,
and operations related to the provision of services. The total net position balance decreased by
$3.0 million from the prior year to total $161.7 million. At the end of the fiscal year, current
assets exceed current liabilities by $32.7 million and noncurrent assets exceed noncurrent
liabilities by $129.0 million. Cash and investment balances increased by $6.7 million from the
prior year balances, to $39.2 million.
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Water Fund Financial Analysis
($ in millions)

2013 2012 Variance
Statements of Net Position
Cash and investments $ 392 % 325 % 6.7
Other current assets 7.3 8.8 (1.5)
Current liabilities (13.8) (10.9) (2.9
Net current assets (liabilities) 32.7 30.4 2.3
Noncurrent assets 384.3 393.6 9.3)
Noncurrent liabilities (255.3) (259.3) 4.0
Net noncurrent assets (liabilities) 129.0 1343 (5.3)
Total Net Position, End of Year $ 1617 $ 1647 $ (3.0

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Operating revenues $ 374 % 333 $ 4.1
Operating expenses (31.7) (23.1) (8.6)
Operating income (loss) 5.7 10.2 4.5)
Non-operating revenues (expenses) (11.9) 4.8) (7.1)
Capital contributions & transfers 3.2 4.4 1.2)
Change in Net Position (3.0 9.8 (12.8)
Total Net Position, Beginning, as originally reported 164.7 145.0 19.7
Prior period adjustment - 9.9 9.9
Total Net Position, Beginning of Year, as restated 164.7 154.9 9.8
Total Net Position, End of Year $ 1617 $ 1647 $ (3.0
Net investment in capital assets $ 1146 $ 1194 $  (48)
Restricted Net Position $ 77 % 83 § (0.6)

Unrestricted Net Position 394 % 370 % 24

©+

Operating revenues and expenses increased in 2013 by $4.1 million and $8.6 million,
respectively. The fund had operating income of $5.7 million for the year, which is a $4.5 million
lower than prior fiscal year. Operating revenues were up due to 10% rate increase effective July
1, 2012. Operating expenses increased as Delta Water Supply Plant became fully operational at
the beginning of the fiscal year with approximate operating costs of $1.4 million. It also
captured a full year of depreciation expense of $4.6 million. Legal action related to the Plant
construction was settled for $2.6 million and is part of current year expenses.

Non-operating revenues (expenses) increased in 2013 by $7.1 million. This resulted from $8.2
million of interest expense being capitalized in 2012 during the construction of the Delta Water
Supply plant. In 2012, the Water Fund received a reimbursement from State of California
Proposition 84 Grant for the Delta Water Supply Project Intake and Pump Station Facility of
$3.8 million. In 2013, the reimbursement decreased to $207 thousand as the plan construction
neared its completion.

Capital contributions and transfers decreased by approximately $1.2 million to $3.2 million.
This is due to a decrease in developer contributions of $2.5 million and an increase in
connection fees of $1.3 million. Water fund had $3.0 million decrease in net position.
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Components of the Water Fund total net position of $164.3 million include net investment in
capital assets of $114.6 million, which decreased by $4.8 million. Restricted net position of $7.7
million was down $0.6 million from the prior year, while unrestricted net position of $42.0
million increased by $5.0 million from the prior year.

Wastewater Utility Fund

The Wastewater Utility fund accounts for activities associated with the acquisition or
construction, and operation and maintenance of wastewater facilities for collection, treatment,
and disposal of wastewater. The total net position balance increased by $5.0 million from the
prior year to total $280.5 million. At the end of the fiscal year, current assets exceed current
liabilities by $24.6 million and noncurrent assets exceed noncurrent liabilities by $255.9 million.
Cash and investment balances increased by $11.8 million from the prior year balances, to total
$25.0 million.

Wastewater Fund Financial Analysis
($ in millions)

2013 2012 Variance
Statements of Net Position
Cash and investments $ 250 $ 132 $ 118
Other current assets 7.1 6.2 0.9
Current liabilities (7.5) 6.8) 0.7)
Net current assets (liabilities) 24.6 12.6 12.0
Noncurrent assets 334.7 345.1 (10.4)
Noncurrent liabilities (78.8) (82.2) 3.4
Net noncurrent assets (liabilities) 255.9 262.9 (7.0
Total Net Position, End of Year $ 2805 $ 2755 % 5.0

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Operating revenues $ 554 % 503 % 5.1
Operating expenses (46.7) (46.9) 0.2
Operating income (loss) 8.7 3.4 5.3
Non-operating revenues (expenses) (4.5) (15.0) 10.5
Capital contributions & transfers 0.9 (0.1) 1.0
Change in Net Position 5.1 (11.7) 16.8
Total Net Position, Beginning of Year 2754 287.2 (11.8)
Total Net Position, End of Year $ 2805 $ 2755 % 5.0
Net investment in capital assets $ 2358 $ 2401 $ @ (43)
Restricted Net Position $ 166 $ 198 $ (3.1)
Unrestricted Net Position $ 281 % 156 $ 125

Operating revenues increased in 2013 by $5.1 million, while operating expenses decreased by
$0.2 million. This is the second consecutive year of positive operating income for the fund. This
improvement directly relates to the 2010 City Council approved multi-year rate increase
structure, which had not been changed since 1992.

Capital contributions and transfers increased by approximately $1.0 million due to decrease in
transfers out of $1.1 million for vehicle transfers coupled with $0.1 million decrease in capital
and developer contributions.
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The components of the $280.5 million in total assets include: net investment in capital assets of
$235.8 million, which decreased by approximately $4.3 million; restricted net position of $16.6
million, which also decreased by $3.1 million; and unrestricted net position of $28.1 million,
which increased by $12.5 million.

Stormwater Utility Fund

The Stormwater Utility Fund accounts for activities associated with the acquisition or
construction, and operation and maintenance of stormwater facilities for drainage and disposal
of stormwater. The total net asset balance fell slightly $0.3 million from the prior year to $54.5
million. At the end of the fiscal year, current assets exceed current liabilities by $3.9 million and
noncurrent assets exceed noncurrent liabilities by $50.6 million. Cash and investment balances
were up by $1.3 million to $3.5 million.

Stormwater Fund Financial Analysis
(% in millions)

2013 2012 Variance

Statements of Net Position
Cash and investments $ 35 % 22 % 1.3
Other current assets 0.6 0.9 (0.3)
Current liabilities 0.2) 0.2) -
Net current assets (liabilities) 3.9 29 1.0
Noncurrent assets 50.6 51.9 (1.3)
Noncurrent liabilities - - -
Net noncurrent assets (liabilities) 50.6 51.9 (1.3)

Total Net Position, End of Year $ 545 % 548 % (0.3

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Operating revenues $ 55 % 59 $ (04
Operating expenses (5.7) 6.2) 0.5
Operating income (loss) 0.2) (0.3) 0.1
Non-operating revenues (expenses) 0.3) (0.5) 0.2
Developer contributions 0.2 0.7 (0.5)
Net change in Fund Balance (0.3) (0.1) 0.2)
Total Net Position, Beginning of Year 54.8 54.9 0.1)
Total Net Position, End of Year $ 545 % 548 % (0.3)
Net investment in capital assets $ 506 $ 520 % (14)
Restricted Net Position $ - $ - $ -
Unrestricted Net Position $ 39 % 28 % 1.1

Operating revenues decreased $0.4 million from the prior year to $5.5 million, while operating
expenses decreased by approximately $0.5 million. The $200,000 operating loss, an
improvement from the prior year loss of $0.3 million, resulted in the twelfth consecutive year in
which the Stormwater Utility Fund has had a net operating loss. A net operating loss is an
indicator that an enterprise’s operating income structure is not meeting standard operating and
infrastructure renewal and replacement cost needs. In December 2010, the City Council
announced that the Stormwater Utility Fund new “Clean Water Fee” failed to secure a majority
of affirmative ballots. Management is still considering options to remedy the ongoing issue of
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operating losses, which could include future rate increases. Developer contributions fell by
approximately $0.5 million, reflecting slow economic recovery resulting in lack of development.

Components of the $54.5 million total net position include: net investment in capital assets of
$50.6 million, which was down by approximately $1.4 million; no restricted net position; and
unrestricted net position of $3.9 million, which increased by $1.1 million compared to the prior
year.

Central Parking District Fund

The Central Parking District accounts for activities associated with the acquisition or
construction, operation and maintenance of off-street parking facilities. The total net position
balance decreased by $1.9 million from the prior year to $2.0 million. At the end of the fiscal
year, current assets exceed current liabilities by $100,000 and noncurrent assets exceed
noncurrent liabilities by $1.9 million. Cash and investment balances changed by $0.9 million.

Central Parking District Fund Financial Analysis
($ in millions)

2013 2012 Variance
Statements of Net Position
Cash and investments $ 19 $ 10 $ 0.9
Other current assets 0.1 - 0.1
Current liabilities (1.9) (1.1) (0.8)
Net current assets (liabilities) 0.1 0.1) 0.2
Noncurrent assets 34.6 371 (2.5)
Noncurrent liabilities (32.7) (33.1) 04
Net noncurrent assets (liabilities) 1.9 4.0 2.1)
Total Net Position, End of Year $ 20 % 39 § (1.9)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Operating revenues $ 27 % 35 § 0.8)
Operating expenses (3.4) (3.3) 0.1)
Operating income (loss) 0.7) 0.2 0.9)
Non-operating revenues (expenses) 0.4) (0.4) -
Capital contributions & transfers (0.8) (1.6) 0.8
Change in Net Position (1.9) (1.8) 0.1)
Total Net Position, Beginning of Year 3.9 5.7 (1.8)
Total Net Position, End of Year $ 20 % 39 % (1.9)
Net investment in capital assets $ 21 % 48 $ (27
Restricted Net Position $ - $ - $ -

&
&

Unrestricted Net Position 01) 5% 0.9) 0.8

Operating revenues decreased in 2013 by $800,000, while operating expenses increased by
$100,000. This is due to reduction in charges for services of $0.8 million, which is the result of
trustee taking possessory interest in three City parking garages. Fees for use of these parking
facilities are no longer recorded as revenues in the fund. In addition, $0.8 million was used to

pay for a share of debt service payments on the SEB building.

Transfers decreased by $0.8 million due to a one-time unrestricted cash transfer in 2012 to the
general fund to maintain general fund cash liquidity prior to bankruptcy.
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Components of the $2.0 million total net position of the Central Parking District Fund include:
net investment in capital assets of $2.1 million, which decreased by approximately $2.7 million,
and a deficit unrestricted net position of approximately $100,000, an increase of approximately
$800,000 compared to the prior year.

Internal Service Funds Financial Analysis

Internal service funds are established to account for the financing of goods and services
provided by one City department to other City departments, on a cost reimbursement basis.
The City’s internal service activities are categorized into two categories, those relating to the:

1) City’s insurance/pension-related transactions; such as general liability, workers’
compensation liability, —employee and retiree health benefits liability,
retirement/ pension benefits and other insurance liability items; and

2) City’s various equipment and vehicle fleet needs and information technology equipment
and services.

Insurance/Pension-Related, Internal Service Fund

Insurance/Pension-related internal service funds have been combined below and include the
General Liability Insurance Fund, Workers” Compensation Liability Insurance Fund, Employee
and Retiree Health Insurance funds, the Retirement Benefits Fund, and the Other Benefits and
Insurance Fund. These funds also account for future estimated related liabilities to the City
based on independent actuarial studies utilizing insurance industry standards of applicable
data, factors and assumptions approved by management.

The General Liability Insurance Fund accounts for premiums and claims paid and administration
of general liability insurance provided to all City departments on a cost reimbursement basis.
The Workers' Compensation Liability Insurance Fund accounts for premiums and claims paid and
administration of workers’ compensation insurance provided to City employees incurring
injury on the job, of which health benefits and other related liability costs are supported by City
department payments into the fund. The Employee Health and Retiree Health Insurance Fund
accounts for premiums and claims paid and administration of health benefits insurance
provided to qualified active and retired City employees, with City departmental payments
made to the funds sought to reimburse health related expenses incurred for active employees
and current retirees.

The Retirement and Other Benefits Insurance Fund accounts for the accumulation and payout of
resources for the purpose of providing defined retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of
living adjustments and death benefits to City employee plan members and beneficiaries
through the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) on a cost
reimbursement basis and to account for premiums and claims paid and administration of
comparatively smaller insurance funds provided to City employees on a cost reimbursement
basis, to include long-term disability, life insurance, and termination pay and compensated
absences benefits.

The prior year deficit of $176.6 million in the insurance/pension-related internal service funds’
decreased by $3.4 million to total $173.2 million deficit. At the end of the fiscal year, current
assets exceed current liabilities by $8.5 million and noncurrent assets fell short of noncurrent
liabilities by $181.7 million. Cash and investment balances increased by $16.0 million to $25.9
million.
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Insurance/Pension-Related, Internal Service Fund Financial Analysis
(% in millions)

2013 2012 Variance
Statements of Net Position
Cash and investments $ 259 §% 99 $ 160
Other current assets 94 12.2 (2.8)
Current liabilities (26.8) (19.7) (7.1)
Net current assets (liabilities) 85 24 6.1
Noncurrent assets 1155 1229 (7.4)
Noncurrent liabilities (297.2) (301.9) 4.7
Net noncurrent assets (liabilities) (181.7) (179.0) 2.7)
Total Net Position, End of Year $ (1732) $ (176.6) $ 3.4

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Operating revenues $ 752 % 85 $ (13.3)
Operating expenses (67.0) (114.6) 47.6
Operating income (loss) 8.2 (26.1) 34.3
Non-operating revenues (expenses) (4.8) (2.8) (2.0
Capital contributions & transfers - 0.9 0.9
Change in Net Position 3.4 (28.0) 314
Total Net Position, Beginning of Year (176.6) (148.6) (28.0)
Total Net Position, End of Year $ (1732) $ (176.6) $ 34
Net investment in capital assets $ - $ - $ -
Restricted Net Position $ - $ - $ -

Unrestricted Net Position 3.4

&

(1732) $ (176.6)

&

Operating revenues dropped by $13.3 million in 2013 primarily due to changes in employee and
retiree health insurance including modifications to the City’s self-funded medical plan, offering
employees a less expensive Kaiser Plan and decline in health plan enrollment, which was a
result of reduced City contributions toward the cost of the health premium. Correspondingly,
operating expenses decreased by $47.6 million mainly due to the previously mentioned changes
to health insurance plans. The reduction in health insurance expenses was offset by an increase
in CalPERS retirement benefit costs. These changes resulted in overall operating income for the
year of $8.2 million. Non-operating expenses increased by $2.0 million.

The $173.2 million of insurance/pension-related deficit is classified as unrestricted and is
comprised of General Liability deficit of $2.4 million, Workers” Compensation deficit of $37.2
million, Employee & Retiree Health Insurance deficit of $120.7 million and Retirement Benefits
of $15.7 million. The significant portion of the deficit is driven from the unfunded liabilities in
the retiree health benefits as these benefits were paid for on a pay as you go basis. In addition,
the outstanding pension obligation bond asset that was contributed to CalPERS when the bond
was issued now has a carrying amount that is less than the amount of the outstanding bond
obligation and obligation to insurer of $131.3 million. This results from the City paying less
than is actuarially required to contribute to fund current benefits due to declining payrolls and
increasing discount rates at CalPERS. In 2013, the workers’ compensation claims decreased and
sufficient charges for services collected to generate operating income in the fund. The post-
retirement employee health benefits liability is subject to negotiations and mediation under the
chapter 9 bankruptcy proceeding. A tentative agreement has been reached with the retirees that
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could result in an adjustment to the liabilities; however, the outcome is contingent on the
bankruptcy proceedings. In addition, the City’s contribution towards post-retirement health
benefits is being phased out over a one year period beginning in fiscal year 2012-13 and will be
completely eliminated in FY 2013-14.

Absent a plan to address the growing deficits in the insurance/benefit-related funds, these
unfunded liabilities will continue to accrue to the City. In addition, readers should be aware
that with the implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions-an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 in FY 2014-15 additional and significant long-
term liabilities will begin to be reported in these financial statements. With already depleted
reserves and deficits in net position in governmental activities of $82.4 million, the capacity to
absorb these obligations will need to be evaluated.

Equipment-Related, Internal Service Fund
Equipment-related internal service funds have been combined below and include the Vehicle
Fleet Equipment, Computer Equipment, Radio Equipment, and Other Equipment.

The Vehicle Fleet Equipment Fund accounts for the financing, operating and maintenance of
vehicles and similar equipment provided to City departments on a cost reimbursement basis.
The Computer Equipment Fund accounts for the financing, service and maintenance of all
computer and related equipment provided to City departments on a cost reimbursement basis.
The Radio Equipment Fund accounts for the financing, service and maintenance of radio
equipment provided to City departments on a cost reimbursement basis. Other Equipment Funds
accounts for the financing, operating and maintenance of other, comparatively smaller
equipment funds provided to City departments on a cost reimbursement basis, which included
telephone, other office, and printing and mailing equipment.

The total net position balance increased by $3.2 million from the prior year to total $21.8 million.
At the end of the fiscal year, current assets exceed current liabilities by $12.7 million and
noncurrent assets exceed noncurrent liabilities by $9.1 million. Cash and investment balances
increased by $3.1 million from the prior year balances, to total $13.8 million.
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Equipment-Related, Internal Service Fund Financial Analysis
($ in millions)

2013 2012 Variance
Statements of Net Position
Cash and investments $ 138 % 107  $ 31
Other current assets 0.2 0.2 -
Current liabilities 1.3) (1.5) 0.2
Net current assets (liabilities) 12.7 94 7 3.3
Noncurrent assets 11.6 10.9 0.7
Noncurrent liabilities (2.5) 1.7) 0.8)
Net noncurrent assets (liabilities) 9.1 9.2 0.1)
Total Net Position, End of Year $ 218 % 186 % 3.2
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Operating revenues $ 218 § 204 5 14
Operating expenses (18.8) (18.0) 0.8)
Operating income (loss) 3.0 24 0.6
Non-operating revenues (expenses) 0.1) 0.1 0.2)
Capital contributions & transfers 0.3 1.6 1.3)
Change in Net Position 3.2 41 7 (09
Total Net Position, Beginning of Year 18.6 14.5 41
Total Net Position, End of Year $ 218 % 186 % 32
Net investment in capital assets $ 86 % 95 % (09
Restricted Net Position $ 132 % 91 % 41
Unrestricted Net Position $ - $ - $ -

Operating revenues increased in 2013 by approximately $1.4 million due to replacement rate
increases, which included the second year of funding for the Citywide Technology Strategic
Plan, while operating expenses increased by $0.8 million. This resulted in an operating income
of $3.0 million, an improvement of $0.6 million. Capital contributions and transfers decreased
by $1.3 million as compared to prior year.

Components of the $21.8 million total net position include: net investment in capital assets,
which decreased by $0.9 million to $8.6 million; and restricted net position, that increased by
$4.1 million due to increased contribution rates for equipment and fleet replacement.
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The City’s proposed budget for the General Fund submitted to Council was out of balance by
$26 million while the City worked through the confidential AB506 mediation process in an
attempt to avoid bankruptcy and restructure financial obligations that would balance the fund.
Not being able to reach an agreement with its creditors and obligated to present a balanced
budget to continue to provide services beginning July 1, 2012, the City developed and presented
for Council consideration the Pendency Plan. The Pendency Plan is the City’s budget while it is
under chapter 9 bankruptcy protection that provided for a $26 million proposed budget gap
closure by making reductions to creditors, employees and retirees. This Plan was adopted by
the City Council in June 2012.

The General Fund’s original budgeted revenue and transfers in were $168.3 million, which
remained mostly unchanged during the year. Minor adjustments were made to taxes,
intergovernmental, charges for services and use of money and property categories with net
increase of $60 thousand. The original budgeted expenditures and transfers out of $168.1
million increased 2.7% to a final revised budget of $172.6 million due to an increase of $1.6
million in general government expenditures related to economic development activities and
$2.7 million in budgeted transfers out and other category. The latter increase was mainly a
result of unencumbered capital projects balance carryover from prior year.

The 2013 fiscal year-end total fund balance increased $16.7 million, to $31.3 million, as a result
of cuts in the Pendency Plan. This additional increase is the result of reductions in expenditures
including high vacancy levels in staffing, savings in labor litigation and chapter 9 expenditures
and other savings in various City departments and expenditure categories. General Fund
assigned fund balance ended the fiscal year with $14.9 million, or 11.5% of total expenditures
for the fiscal year. This balance represents assignment for future appropriations and other
operating needs as approved by the City Manager and City Council. The fiscal year 2013
General Fund unassigned fund balance is $3.1 million fully represented by the receipt of
property tax administrative fee refund described earlier.

General Fund Revenues and Transfers

Of the $174.8 million in actual total 2013 General Fund revenues and transfers, $94.9 million or
54.3% were from taxes. Tax collections support citizen services such as for police and fire
protection that cannot be provided in the private sector without a substantial subsidy. The tax
category includes collections for property tax, utility user tax, franchise fees, business licenses,
in lieu of sales tax, the hotel/motel transient occupancy tax, and other smaller tax revenue
sources.

Taxes are followed by intergovernmental revenues as the second largest revenue source,
amounting to $53.2 million, or 30.4% of the total. This category is comprised of motor vehicle in
lieu registration fees, sales and use tax levied by the State of California, payments from San
Joaquin County to support the City’s operating costs of eight out of thirteen library branches
located outside the City’s boundaries, and grant funds from the federal and state governments.
The third largest revenue source in fiscal 2013 was charges for services reported at $9.2 million
or 5.3% of the total. These revenues are collected in exchange for specific services provided by
the City.
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FY 2012-13 General Fund Revenues/ Transfers
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Collection of these revenues assists in defraying the costs of services, but cannot exceed the
reasonable cost of the service. There was a $2.1 million decrease from fiscal 2012 primarily due
to the receipt in prior year settlement payments from three fire districts contracting with the
City for services. Of the total, the majority are revenues generated from the following areas and
programs: $1.7 million from recreational services and programs, $3.3 million from mutual aid
Fire Department services contractually provided to neighboring jurisdictions, $1.2 million in
charges to City property owners related to code enforcement efforts and $1.8 million in other
service charges by the Police Department.

The last primary source of General Fund revenue is from use of money and property amounting
to $8.0 million in fiscal 2013 or 4.6% of total revenues and transfers in. The two primary
sources in this category are revenues generated by the entertainment venue activities and rent
paid to the General Fund from the Municipal Utilities funds for properties used by the utilities.

The remaining revenue categories are 5.5% of the total, and include licenses and permits,
investment earnings, fines and forfeitures, refunds and reimbursements, and miscellaneous
revenue.

The graph below illustrates the significant level of tax support for General Fund services,
amounting to $89.7 million or 53.3% of the total final budgeted revenue and transfers estimate
of $168.3 million.
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FY 2012-13 General Fund Original vs. Final Budget Revenues by Source Category

(in Millions)
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The following graph illustrates that during the year actual revenue collections and transfers of
$174.8 million were $6.5 million above final budgetary estimates of $168.3 million. Key
components of this 3.8% difference are as follow:

e Tax revenues came in $5.2 million above budget mainly from unexpected receipts of $3.1
million in refunds from the County for prior year over collections of the Property Tax
Administration Fee. Other revenue categories that exceeded budgetary estimate include
sales tax, utility user tax and franchise tax.

e A shortfall of approximately $4.6 million in charges for services due to entertainment
venue revenues being recorded as use of money and property but budgeted as charges
for services.

e Use of money and property revenues was greater than the budget because
entertainment revenues were posted to this category rather than charges for services.

o Refunds and reimbursement revenues are greater than budget due to the booking a $0.6
million receivable for state mandated costs. An allowance for this receivable reduces
total revenues in the miscellaneous revenue category. Police reimbursements exceeded
budget as well as a result of several multi-agency enforcement missions and overtime
hours reimbursements.
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FY 2012-13 General Fund Final Budget vs. Actual Revenues by Source Category

(in Millions)
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General Fund Expenditures and Transfers

Of the $158.1 million of actual expenditures and transfers out, on a budgetary basis, of the
General Fund, $112.7 million, or 71%, were spent on public safety services. The second largest
service category was parks and recreation at $15.1 million, or 10%, of the total. General
government services were the third largest category at $15.0 million, or 9% of the total; followed
by library services amounting to $8.8 million, 6% of the total. Transfers to other funds totaled
$3.7 million or 2% of the total and lastly Public Works” operating expenditures are recorded at
$2.8 million or 2% of the total, with the City’s costs for road maintenance and repair, resurfacing
and transportation-related infrastructure construction cost being recorded in other special
revenue funds supported by state and federal subventions and specific grant programs.

The General Fund ended the year with a total expenditures and transfers budget of $172.6
million, compared to the originally adopted budget of $168.1 million. Between the original and
final budgets, Transfers and Other had a net increase of $2.7 million. Of this amount, $2.4
million in capital outlay appropriations not fully expended at the end of the prior fiscal year
were re-appropriated and included in the final fiscal year 2013 budget per City Charter
provisions. Transfers overall increased $0.3 million due to increase in Council approved capital
projects and Golf Fund subsidies.
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The graph below illustrates the changes from the original budget during the year. Significant
commitment of the total final budget is allocated for public safety (police and fire), amounting
to $118.3 million or 69% of the total final budget.

FY 2012-13 General Fund Original and Final Budget Expenditures by Services Program
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FY 2012-13 General Fund Final Budget vs. Actual Expenditures by Services Program

(in Millions)
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The below graph illustrates how General Fund actual expenditures are distributed amongst the
six functional categories of the organization, with prior year actual expenditures as comparative
data. Total expenditures, including transfers out, in fiscal year 2013 of $158.1 million were $11
million lower than the prior fiscal year. This reduction in spending is the consequence of
concessions resulting from the implementation of the pendency plan aimed to balance the 2012-
13 general fund budget while in bankruptcy protection. These reductions were offset with $2.9
million increase in bankruptcy costs. The pendency plan, which is the City’s budget while in
bankruptcy, reduced the originally proposed budget deficit of $26 million through continued
cost reduction measures. These measures included the renegotiation of bargaining unit labor
agreements, 62 hours of furlough for all City employees, and reduced City contributions to
employee retirement and health insurance. Additional measures were recommended and
adopted by Council that included reduction and subsequent elimination of the City’s share of
retiree health contributions and suspension of certain General Fund backed debt obligation
payments.
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Key components of significant changes are as follows:

Public safety expenditures declined $9.8 million or 8.0%. In the police department this
was due to labor cost reductions and the inability to fill Police Officer vacancies as the
department continued to experience high attrition rates and difficulty in recruiting new
officers as a result of imposed compensation reductions under the City’s Pendency Plan.
The Fire Department reduced expenses $7.3 million through renegotiated labor contracts
with fire employee bargaining units and labor cost reductions under the Pendency Plan.
General government increased by $2.1 million due to the legal costs incurred as the City
moved forward with filing for bankruptcy protection, which is an expensive litigation
process.

Parks and recreation increased by $0.9 million due to increased cost in the Entertainment
Venues operations.

The Transfers and Other expenditure category decreased $3.5 million with the
suspension of certain General Fund backed debt obligation payments that occurred as a
result of the Pendency Plan and City’s filing for chapter 9 protection, reduction of
contributions to capital program and Marina enterprise fund, and elimination of one-
time contributions to equipment replacement offset with increased subsidies to
development services programs.

General Fund Actual Expenditures by Services Program - FY 2011-12 vs. FY 2012-13

(in Millions)
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets, net of depreciation expense, for its governmental and
business-type activities as of June 30, 2013 amounts to $1.6 billion. This investment in capital
assets includes land and easements, buildings and improvements, water and sewer systems,
machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, streets, and bridges. The total increase in the
City’s capital assets for the fiscal year was $15.0 million or 1%. Governmental activities
increased $28.1 million or 0.4% and business-type activities decreased $13.1 million or 2%, as
shown in the following table.

Changes in Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Land $45,344 $44,769 $15,607 $15,607 $60,951 $60,376
Intangible Assets 4,310 3,435 750 750 5,060 $4,185
Building and
Improvements 252,624 260,108 730,567 742,917 983,191 1,003,025
Machinery and
Equipment 15,127 15,017 2,920 2,979 18,047 17,996
Infrastructure 326,853 334,261 - - 326,853 334,261
Construction
in Progress 172,015 130,553 20,272 20,955 192,287 151,508
Total $816,273 $788,143 $770,116 $783,208 | $1,586,389 $1,571,351

Construction in progress increased by $40.8 million, or 26.9%, of which governmental activities
were up $41.5 million and business-type activities went down by $0.7 million. The current year
governmental activities construction in progress included Arch/Sperry Road Extension, French
Camp/Sperry Road/Performance Road extension, Lower Sacramento road widening/UPRR,
Eight Mile Road/ UPRR West and East Grade Separation projects.

Land increased by $0.6 million. Building and Improvements decreased $19.8 million in fiscal
year 2013 due to annual depreciation of $29.7 million offset by developer contributions and
completed capital projects of $9.9 million. Machinery and equipment increased by less than
$0.1 million. Infrastructure decreased overall by $7.4 million due to $4.1 million additions from
developer contribution and completed street improvements offset by annual depreciation.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 7 - Capital Assets of
this report.
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Long-term debt

At the end of the fiscal year, the City’s total outstanding net bonded debt is $587.8 million. Of
this amount, $216.1 million ($233.1 million including amounts owed to bond insurers) is related
to governmental activities and $371.7 million ($372.3 million including amounts owed to bond
insurers) are debt obligations of business-type activities.

Governmental activities net bonded indebtedness decreased by $7.3 million due to scheduled
principal payments and amortization of deferred charges.

Business-type activities net bonded indebtedness decreased by $6.9 million due to scheduled
principal payments and amortization of deferred charges.

Governmental outstanding net bonded debt of $216.1 million includes $11.0 million ($11.1
million if including amounts owed to bond insurer) of lease revenue bonds for the City’s
Stewart/Eberhardt Building/Parking Structure (SEB), $34.7 million ($43.6 million if including
amounts owed to bond insurer) of Series A (tax exempt) and B (taxable) Variable Rate Demand
Lease Revenue Bonds for the acquisition of an office building and parking garage in downtown
Stockton planned to be the new City administration building (400 East Main), $12.6 million of
certificates of participation for various former redevelopment housing projects, $123.4 million
($131.3 million if including amounts owed to bond insurer) of pension obligation bonds, and
$34.4 million in lease revenue bonds for various capital projects facilities expended from the
Public Facility Impact Fees Fund.

Successor Agency bonded debt in the amount of $125.1 million is reported separately in a
Private Purpose Trust Fund. The balance outstanding at June 30, 2013 includes $45.1 million of
revenue bonds for the Stockton Events Center-Arena and $80.0 million of revenue bonds for
various former redevelopment and housing projects referred to as the Strong Neighborhoods
Initiative (SNI).

Business-type activities outstanding net bonded debt obligations of $371.7 million includes
$258.9 million of revenue bonds of the Water Utility, $81.6 million in certificates of participation
for the Wastewater Utility, and $31.2 million ($31.8 million if including amounts owed to bond
insurer) in lease revenue bonds in the Central Parking District.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 8 - Long-Term Debt
of this report.

CURrRRENTLY KNOWN FAcTS, DECISIONS OR CONDITIONS

The following items are currently known facts, decisions or conditions that management were
aware of as of the date of the auditor’s report and/or were considered in preparing the City’s
budget for the 2013-14 fiscal year.

e Several City creditors challenged the City’s eligibility to be a Chapter 9 debtor shortly after
the City filed for bankruptcy. After a nearly nine month discovery and mediation process
and a three day trial, the United States Bankruptcy Court Judge on April 1, 2013 ruled the
City had negotiated in good faith, was insolvent and that it was eligible for Chapter 9
bankruptcy protection. Prior to the ruling, the city had reached agreement with all of its
labor unions, one bond insurer and its retirees. The City has continued to mediate with the
remaining creditors since the eligibility trial with the court appointed mediator. Tentative
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agreements have been reached with the majority of the City’s major creditors and have been
incorporated into the proposed plan of adjustment, which was filed October 10, 2013, as
amended November 15, 2013, with the United States Bankruptcy Court. Since the filing of
the plan of adjustment, one creditor has filed a challenge to the plan of adjustment. Though
the outcome of the bankruptcy and any challenges the City may receive is uncertain,
management is continuing to proceed towards confirmation of the plan of adjustment with
its creditors. A status conference was held November 18, 2013 allowing the City to submit
the Plan to a vote of its creditors. The City’s Plan is scheduled for trial in May 2014.

In connection with the City’s filing for bankruptcy protection under Chapter 9, the City
adopted a pendency plan budget for fiscal year 2012-13 which included several measures
and cost reductions to close a $26.0 million shortfall to balance the budget. Of these
reductions, the City, effective July 1, 2012, reduced its contribution towards the cost of
retiree medical for current and future retirees to a fixed dollar amount depending upon
years of service to the city and retirement status. This resulted in approximately $7.7
million in total annual budget savings for the City’s general fund. Effective July 1, 2013, the
City completely eliminated its contribution for all retiree medical benefits for current
retirees and employees. This is anticipated to result in an additional increase in total annual
budget savings from $7.7 to $9.5 million. The City’s retirees are creditors in the bankruptcy
case and have been in mediation with the City. A tentative settlement of the retirees’ claims
in the amount of $5.1 million has been negotiated and approved but is subject to bankruptcy
court approval.

The City has undergone multiple bond rating downgrades during the fiscal year as
discussed further in the notes to the financial statements. These downgrades have been to
both Governmental Activities outstanding debt, as well as Water and Wastewater
outstanding debt. The credit rating agency cited the City’s narrow financial position, its
inability to produce timely financial information, the City’s unwillingness to pay as
evidenced by defaults in debt payments after year end, and economically challenged tax
base as the reason for its bond rating changes. After the close of fiscal year 2013, the City has
continued to operate under the bankruptcy protection and its governmental activities debt
has undergone three additional bond rating downgrades.

The City issued $55.0 million in Series 2010A Revenue Bonds in November 2013. These
bonds were remarketed to fixed interest rates from variable rates in order to cancel the letter
of credit that was due to expire and to reduce overall risk to the Water Utility System cash
flow. Undertaking this transaction has improved the bond ratings of the Water and
Wastewater debt as the rating agencies more closely evaluated the City, its bankruptcy
impacts to those funds, and the firewall that the City had established between its restricted
and unrestricted funds. In addition, as evidenced in this report the operations of the Water
fund are improving as it is implementing the Proposition 218 Rate Study increases.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, grantors, investors
and creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s
accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need
additional financial information, contact the Administrative Services Department of the City of
Stockton at City Hall, 425 North El Dorado Street, Stockton, CA 95202.
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CITY OF STOCKTON
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 127,527,301 $ 69,991,162 $ 197,518,463
Restricted cash and investments 3,453,033 56,588,565 60,041,598
Interest receivable 621,602 9,741 631,343
Accounts receivable, net 15,906,385 12,333,906 28,240,291
Internal balances 1,894,684 (1,894,684) -
Due from other governments, net 37,598,920 1,435,589 39,034,509
Inventory of supplies 409,199 1,538,872 1,948,071
Other assets 1,679,523 49,599 1,729,122
Loans to Successor Agency, net 2,495,331 - 2,495,331
Loans to property owners, net 120,509,306 - 120,509,306
Deferred charges 2,939,493 4,181,868 7,121,361
Net pension asset 113,588,317 - 113,588,317
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable 221,668,090 36,629,665 258,297,755
Depreciable, net 594,604,642 733,485,978 1,328,090,620
Total assets 1,244,895,826 914,350,261 2,159,246,087
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 15,635,649 8,012,799 23,648,448
Accrued payroll and benefits 3,044,058 - 3,044,058
Accrued interest 5,298,266 6,468,737 11,767,003
Deposits and other liabilities 2,349,686 1,640,438 3,990,124
Unearned revenue 2,815,372 - 2,815,372
Settlement payable 18,793,311 - 18,793,311
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 49,223,246 8,923,861 58,147,107
Due in more than one year 285,085,653 375,454,402 660,540,055
Net OPEB obligation 125,670,518 - 125,670,518
Total liabilities 507,915,759 400,500,237 908,415,996
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 725,426,494 418,880,914 1,144,307,408
Restricted for:
Capital projects 40,642,925 24,314,558 64,957,483
Debt service 2,553,429 - 2,553,429
Loan programs 9,400,236 - 9,400,236
Low and moderate-income housing 3,049,135 - 3,049,135
Public safety 3,192,691 - 3,192,691
Street improvements 7,092,202 - 7,092,202
Special maintenance districts 12,850,335 - 12,850,335
Fleet and equipment replacement 12,531,129 - 12,531,129
Endowments:
Nonexpendable 304,314 - 304,314
Expendable 234,482 - 234,482
Other purposes 2,053,999 - 2,053,999
Unrestricted (deficit) (82,351,304) 70,654,552 (11,696,752)

Total net position

$ 736,980,067

$ 513,850,024

$ 1,250,830,091
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CITY OF STOCKTON

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Program Revenues

DRAFT

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS Expenses Services Contributions ~ Contributions
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 24,909,513 $ 17,977,202 $ 2,309,193 $ -
Public safety 108,930,835 18,129,530 4,475,017 -
Public works 49,258,889 6,135,824 11,847,923 57,146,323
Library 8,445,270 669,598 5,171,813 -
Parks and recreation 19,735,693 6,596,505 22,643 -
Interest and fiscal charges 14,614,599 - - -
Total governmental
activities 225,894,799 49,508,659 23,826,589 57,146,323
Business-type activities:

Water utility 48,570,376 37,463,882 4,175,006 3,490,016
Wastewater utility 51,166,333 55,368,874 - 1,026,826
Stormwater utility 5,959,372 5,502,720 - 183,465

Central parking district 4,943,628 2,668,869 - -

Other 2,939,174 1,934,772 - -

Total business-ty pe

activities 113,578,883 102,939,117 4,175,006 4,700,307
Total $ 339,473,682 $ 152,447,776 $ 28,001,595 $ 61,846,630

General revenues:
Taxes:
Property
In lieu of sales tax
Utility user
Sales - levied by City
Franchise fees
Business license
Hotel/motel room
Document transfer
Other
Shared revenue:
Vehicle license fees
Sales and use tax levied by state
Other
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Loss from disposal of capital assets
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position
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Governmental
Activities

Business-Type

Activities

Totals

$  (4623,118)

$ (4,623,118)

(86,326,288) (86,326,288)
25,871,181 25,871,181
(2,603,859) (2,603,859)
(13,116,545) (13,116,545)
(14,614,599) (14,614,599)
(95,413,228) (95,413,228)
$ (3441472 (3,441,472)
5,229,367 5,229,367
(273,187) (273,187)
(2,274,759) (2,274,759)
(1,004,402) (1,004,402)
(1,764,453) (1,764,453)
(95,413,228) (1,764,453) (97,177,681)
29,419,524 - 29,419,524
9,937,924 - 9,937,924
31,940,732 - 31,940,732
9,085,896 - 9,085,896
11,676,524 - 11,676,524
10,152,760 - 10,152,760
2,005,668 - 2,005,668
458,431 - 458,431
287,312 1,196,816 1,484,128
17,433,073 - 17,433,073
34,031,378 - 34,031,378
400,230 - 400,230
123,108 529,882 652,990
2,411,233 13,503 2,424,736
(544) - (544)
523,659 (523,659) -
159,886,908 1,216,542 161,103,450
64,473,680 (547,911) 63,925,769
672,506,387 514,397,935 1,186,904,322

$ 736,980,067

$ 513,850,024

$ 1,250,830,091
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Governmental Fund Types

Governmental funds consist of the General Fund, special revenue, debt service, capital projects, and
permanent funds.

Special revenue and capital projects funds are used to account for the financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for special purposes or capital outlays, including
the acquisition and development of capital facilities and other capital assets.

The City's major governmental funds include:

General Fund

To account for resources not accounted for in another fund. The General Fund is the City's main
operating fund reflecting transactions related to municipal governmental services supported by
taxes, intergovernmental revenues, charges for services and other governmental type revenues.

HOME Program Loans Special Revenue Fund
To account for the City’s HOME Program providing affordable housing for low- and very low-
income residents in accordance with various federal and state laws.

Low and Moderate-Income Housing City Loans Special Revenue Fund
To account for loans extended to eligible low and moderate-income families as approved by the
former Stockton Redevelopment Agency and the California Health and Safety Code.

Capital Improvement Capital Projects Fund

To account for the acquisition, construction and improvement of capital facilities as required by city
Council action or state law in which the projects are financed by grants, lease proceeds and
transfers from other City governmental funds.
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Proprietary Fund Types

Proprietary funds focus on the determination of operating income, changes in net positions, financial
position, and cash flows. There are two different types: enterprise funds and the internal service
funds. Enterprise funds are used to report activities for which a fee is charged to external users for
goods and services. Internal service funds may be used to report any activity that provides goods
and services on a cost-reimbursement basis to other City funds, departments, or agencies of the
primary government and its component units, or to other governments. The City's internal service
funds include: General Liability Insurance, Workers' Compensation Insurance, Employee and Retiree
Health Insurance, Retirement Benefits, Other Benefits and Insurance, Vehicle Fleet Equipment,
Computer Equipment, Radio Equipment, and Other Equipment funds.

The City's major enterprise funds include:

Water Utility Enterprise Fund

To account for activities associated with the acquisition or construction of water treatment facilities,
production, distribution and transmission of potable water to users, and operations related to the
provision of services.

Wastewater Utility Enterprise Fund

To account for activities associated with the acquisition or construction, and operation and
maintenance of wastewater facilities for collection, treatment, and disposal of wastewater, and
operations related to the provision of services.

The City elects to present the following as major funds:

Stormwater Utility Enterprise Fund

To account for activities associated with the acquisition or construction, and operation and
maintenance of stormwater facilities for drainage and disposal of stormwater, and operations
related to the provision of services.

Central Parking District Enterprise Fund
To account for activities associated with the acquisition or construction, operation and maintenance
of off-street parking facilities, and operations related to the provision of services.
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Fiduciary Fund Types

The fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and
which, therefore, cannot be used to support the government's own programs. The financial activities
of these funds are excluded from the Entity-wide financial statements, but are presented in separate
Fiduciary Funds financial statements. The fiduciary funds category includes agency funds and
private-purpose trust funds.

Agency Fund

To account for land secured financing, developer area of benefit fees, pass-thru public fees on
behalf of other entities, funds held in trust as security for development projects, and various
community enhancement programs the City administers on behalf of other entities.

Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Stockton

To account for a separate legal entity, which was formed to hold the assets and liabilities of the
former Redevelopment Agency pursuant to the City Council actions taken on August 23, 2011. The
activity of the Successor Agency is overseen by an Oversight Board comprised of individuals
appointed by various government agencies and the City of Stockton as Successor Agency of the
former Redevelopment Agency. The nature and significance of the relationship between the City
and the Successor agency is such that it would be misleading to exclude the Successor Agency from
the City’s financial statements. The Successor Agency is presented herein in the City’s fiduciary
funds as a private-purpose trust fund.
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CITY OF STOCKTON
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013
Major Funds
Special Revenue
Home Low-Moderate
General Program Income Housing
Fund Loans City Loans
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 27,006,543 $ 282,590 $ 52,798
Cash and investments with fiscal agents - - -
Receivables, net:
Interest 620,388 - -
Accounts and other receivables 13,126,389 3,481 1,106
Advance deposits - - -
Due from other governments, net 5,754,491 51,538 -
Inventory of supplies 409,199 - -
Prepaid expenses - - -
Loans to other funds, net - - -
Loans to Successor Agency - - 2,995,331
Loans to property owners, net - 35,425,779 54,531,263
Total assets $ 46,917,010 $ 35,763,388 $ 57,580,498
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:

. Accounts payable $ 3,576,531 $ - $ 100
Accrued payroll and benefits 3,044,058 - -
Due to other funds - - -
Due to other governments 661,418 - -
Due to other agencies 278,266 - -
Deposits and other liabilities 813,205 - -
Deferred revenue 7,221,956 35,425,779 54,531,263
Settlement payable - - -

Total liabilities 15,595,434 35,425,779 54,531,363

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):

Nonspendable 409,199 -
Restricted 2,234,046 337,609 3,049,135

Committed 7,566,836 -

Assigned 18,018,067 -

Unassigned (deficit) 3,093,428 -
Total fund balances 31,321,576 337,609 3,049,135
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 46,917,010 $ 35,763,388 $ 57,580,498
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Major Fund
Capital Projects
Total
Capital Other Governmental
Improvement Governmental Funds

$ - $ 60,548,026 $ 87,889,957
- 3,424,883 3,424,883

- 1,214 621,602

15,416 1,677,242 14,823,634

225,300 - 225,300
17,327,182 14,465,709 37,598,920

- - 409,199

- 64,931 64,931

- 1,275,218 1,275,218

- - 2,995,331

- 30,552,264 120,509,306

$ 17,567,898 $ 112,009487 $ 269,838,281
$ 9,563,391 $ 1,617,208 $ 14,757,230
- - 3,044,058

4,797,537 2,399,285 7,196,822

29,652 168,345 859,415

- - 278,266

- 349,696 1,162,901

813,416 31,948,609 129,941,023

- 18,793,311 18,793,311

15,203,996 55,276,454 176,033,026

- 369,245 778,444

2,363,902 75,157,099 83,141,791

- - 7,566,836

- - 18,018,067
- (18,793,311) (15,699,883)

2,363,902 56,733,033 93,805,255

$ 17,567,898 $ 112,009487 $ 269,838,281

DRAFT
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CITY OF STOCKTON

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013

Total Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 93,805,255

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
Non-depreciable 221,668,090
Depreciable (net of accumulated depreciation, and net of $11,594,621 583,010,021
reported in the Internal Service Funds)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of internal service funds
are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position. (151,383,270)

Various long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period, and
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds:

Compensated absences (10,377,022)
Bonds payable and other long-term debt (126,910,096)
Unamortized bond premiums and deferred amount on refunding 1,381,273
Accrued interest payable (net of $2,305,490 is reported in the Internal Service Fun (2,992,776)

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources are not available for current period
and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds or not recorded in the
governmental funds:

Deferred revenue 127,125,651
Deferred charges (net of $1,286,552 reported in the Internal Service Funds) 1,652,941
Net position of governmental activities $ 736,980,067
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DRAFT

CITY OF STOCKTON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Major Funds

Special Revenue
Home Low-Moderate
General Program Income Housing
Fund Loans City Loans
REVENUES:
Taxes:

Property $ 29,419,524 $ - $ -

In lieu of sales tax 9,937,924 - -

Utility user 31,940,732 - -

Sales - levied by City - - -

Franchise fees 11,676,524 - -

Business license 9,168,078 - -

Hotel/motel room 2,005,668 - -

Document transfer 458,431 - -

Other 287,312 - -
Licenses and permits 384,273 - -
Intergovernmental:

Federal grants and subsidies 2,868 3,371,064 -

Sales and use tax - levied by state 29,981,596 - -

Other governmental 23,196,781 - -
Charges for services 9,193,132 - -
Fines and forfeitures 2,393,353 - -
Use of money and property 7,966,971 829,040 230,564
Investment income:

Interest income 1,103 8,749 (1,641)
Refunds and reimbursements 1,748,398 - -
Miscellaneous 3,936,699 - 206,644

Total revenues 173,699,367 4,208,853 435,567
EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government 15,002,935 -

Public safety 112,733,094 -

Public works 2,771,451 -

Library 8,831,292 -

Parks and recreation 15,086,783 -

Capital outlay 280,612 4,727,379 211,508
Debt service:
Principal retirement - -
Interest and fiscal charges - -
Total expenditures 154,706,167 4,727,379 211,508
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 18,993,200 (518,526) 224,059
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 1,071,307 - -
Transfers out (3,379,678) - (230,820)
Bond insurers proceeds - -
Total other financing sources (uses) (2,308,371) - (230,820)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 16,684,829 (518,526) (6,761)
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), BEGINNING OF YEAR 14,636,747 856,135 3,055,896
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 31,321,576 $ 337,609 $ 3,049,135
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Major Fund
Capital Projects
Total
Capital Other Governmental
Improvement Governmental Funds
$ - $ - $ 29,419,524
- - 9,937,924
- - 31,940,732
- 9,085,896 9,085,896
- - 11,676,524
- 984,682 10,152,760
- - 2,005,668
- - 458,431
- - 287,312
- 3,311,817 3,696,090
9,908,603 9,875,517 23,158,052
- 4,049,782 34,031,378
20,741,974 27,807,514 71,746,269
- 9,866,195 19,059,327
- 26,091 2,419,444
628 4,739,953 13,767,156
2,758 108,456 119425
500 65,261 1,814,159
234,124 2,564,214 6,941,681
30,888,587 72,485,378 281,717,752
- 8,242,140 23,245,075
- 12,598,402 125,331,496
- 10,726,305 13,497,756
- 207,415 9,038,707
- 2,646,233 17,733,016
55,819,687 11,529,067 72,568,253
168,401 8,844,878 9,013,279
80,378 5,877,035 5,957,413
56,068,466 60,671,475 276,384,995
(25,179,879) 11,813,903 5,332,757
25,297,655 4,308,997 30,677,959
(628) (26,748,813) (30,359,939)
- 8,286,963 8,286,963
25,297,027 (14,152,853) 8,604,983
117,148 (2,338,950) 13,937,740
2,246,754 59,071,983 79,867,515

$ 2,363,902

$ 56,733,033

$ 93,805,255

DRAFT
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CITY OF STOCKTON

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF
ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds: $ 13,937,740

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. As donated capital assets
don't create or use financial resources, they are not reported in governmental funds.
However, in the statement of activities, the costs of those assets are allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. Capital outlays, donated
capital assets, capital asset disposals and depreciation expense are as follows:

Capitalized capital outlays 51,654,392
Donated capital assets 1,262,172
Capital asset disposals, net (4,789,823)
Depreciation expense (net of $2,387,652 reported in Internal Service funds) (20,642,030)

Long-term debt (including refunding debt), net of bond premiums and discounts,
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases
long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment of principal (including
bond refundings) and costs of issuance are expenditures in the governmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets, and the costs of
issuance increase deferred charges in the statement of net assets. Long-term debt
proceeds, bond premiums, discounts, repayment of principal, costs of issuance and bond
refundings are as follows:

Bond insurers proceeds - principal (8,286,963)
Accrued interest on bond insurers proceeds (299,840)
State animal control obligation 210,802
Repayment of principal 9,013,279

Costs of issuance

Internal service tunds are used by management to charge the costs ot certain activities,
such as central garage, equipment and insurance, to individual funds. The net revenue
(expense) of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. 6,656,170

Revenues in the statement of activities previously recognized as revenue for amounts that
were deferred in the governmental funds, as amounts did not represent current financial
resources. 7,423,132

Other expenses in the statement of activities that do not use current financial resources are
not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.

Change in compensated absences 9,589,981

Amortization of bond discounts and premiums, costs of issuance, and deferred

amount on refunding (133,961)

Change in accrued interest (1,121,371)
Change in net position of governmental activities $ 64,473,680

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF STOCKTON

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2013
Major Funds
Enterprise
Water Wastewater Stormwater
Utility Utility Utility
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments 39,219,806 $ 24,923,625 $ 3,510,421
Receivables, net:
Interest 9,720 12 -
Accounts and other receivables 5,919,282 5,695,389 597,419
Advance Deposit - - -
Due from other funds - - -
Due from other governments, net 1,435,589 - -
Inventory of supplies - 1,495,287 -
Deposits and advances - - -
Prepaid expenses - 32,100 -
Total current assets 46,584,397 32,146,413 4,107,840
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and investments 7,701,524 16,613,034 -
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 31,954,847 188,370 -
Loans to other funds, net - - -
Deferred charges 2,755,167 763,720 -
Pension asset - - -
Capital assets, net:
Nondepreciable 10,188,913 17,791,296 461,471
Depreciable, net 331,672,590 299,399,989 50,110,220
Total noncurrent assets 384,273,041 334,756,409 50,571,691
Total assets 430,857,438 366,902,822 54,679,531
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 4,408,341 2,725,885 140,168
Due to other governments 461,079 - -
Deposits and other liabilities 1,331,235 - 10,000
Accrued interest 3,580,015 1,406,558 -
Capital lease obligation - - -
Compensated absences - current 138,548 438,668 15,906
Self-insurance claims and judgments - current - - -
Other long-term debt - current 3,952,645 2,950,482 -
Total current liabilities 13,871,863 7,521,593 166,074
Noncurrent liabilities:
Loans from other funds, net - - -
Compensated absences - long-term 61,995 199,903 4,184
Self-insurance claims and judgments - long-term - - -
Capital lease obligations - - -
Notes payable 252,271 - -
Certificates of participation - 78,634,887 -
Bonds payable 255,018,448 - -
Net OPEB obligation - - -
Total noncurrent liabilities 255,332,714 78,834,790 4,184
Total liabilities 269,204,577 86,356,383 170,258
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 114,592,986 235,794,286 50,571,691
Restricted for capital projects 7,701,524 16,613,034 -
Restricted for debt service - - -
Restricted for equipment replacement - - -
Unrestricted (deficit) 39,358,351 28,139,119 3,937,582
Total net position 161,652,861 $ 280,546,439 $ 54,509,273
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Major Fund
Enterprise Governmental
Central Parking Other Nonmajor Activities
District Enterprise Totals Internal Service
$ 1,866,597 $ 470,713  $ 69,991,162  $ 39,637,344
9 - 9,741 -
105,853 15,963 12,333,906 1,082,751
- - - 1,159,000
- - - 7,196,822
- - 1,435,589 -
- 43,585 1,538,872 -
- - - 111,668
- 17,499 49,599 118,624
1,972,459 547,760 85,358,869 49,306,209
- - 24,314,558 -
130,790 - 32,274,007 28,150
- - - 619,466
662,981 - 4,181,868 1,286,552
- - - 113,588,317
7,828,180 359,805 36,629,665 -
25,971,071 26,332,108 733,485,978 11,594,621
34,593,022 26,691,913 830,886,076 127,117,106
36,565,481 27,239,673 916,244,945 176,423,315
124,404 120,754 7,519,552 878,419
- 32,168 493,247 -
187,189 112,014 1,640,438 49,104
530,972 951,192 6,468,737 2,305,490
- - - 538,627
7,719 - 600,841 281,816
- - - 14,476,729
1,007,580 412,313 8,323,020 9,574,653
1,857,864 1,628,441 25,045,835 28,104,838
1,894,684 - 1,894,684 500,000
2,604 - 268,686 127,171
- - - 49,209,109
- - - 2,424,949
- 10,458,508 10,710,779 -
- - 78,634,887 -
30,821,602 - 285,840,050 121,770,000
- - - 125,670,518
32,718,890 10,458,508 377,349,086 299,701,747
34,576,754 12,086,949 402,394,921 327,806,585
2,100,859 15,821,092 418,880,914 9,238,667
- - 24,314,558 -
- - - 28,150
- - - 12,531,129
(112,132) (668,368) 70,654,552 (173,181,216)
$ 1,988,727  § 15,152,724 $ 513,850,024  § (151,383,270)
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DRAFT

CITY OF STOCKTON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND
NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Major Funds
Enterprise
Water Wastewater Stormwater
Utility Utility Utility
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services $ 36,698,615 $ 54,348,711 $ 5,366,793
Miscellaneous 765,267 1,020,163 135,927
Total operating revenues 37,463,882 55,368,874 5,502,720
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Operation and maintenance 12,492,250 26,444,690 1,559,174
General and administrative 3,946,463 8,977,848 2,505,982
Depreciation and amortization 7,417,220 11,249,429 1,586,100
Purchased water 7,887,945 - -
Total operating expenses 31,743,878 46,671,967 5,651,256
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 5,720,004 8,696,907 (148,536)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Taxes - - -
Grants and subsidies 4,381,968 - -

Investment income:
Interest income 509,379 27,063 1,026

Gain (loss) from disposal of capital assets - - -

Interest expense and fiscal charges (16,826,498) (4,494,366) (308,116)
Other non-operating revenues 5,293 8,210 -
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (11,929,858) (4,459,093) (307,090)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS (6,209,854) 4,237,814 (455,626)
Capital contributions 2,627,529 919,807 -
Developer Contributions 655,525 107,019 183,465
Transfers in - - -
Transfers out (59,942) (145,697) (31,036)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (2,986,742) 5,118,943 (303,197)
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 164,639,603 275,427,496 54,812,470
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $ 161,652,861 $ 280,546,439 $ 54,509,273
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Major Fund

Enterprise

Central Parking

Other Nonmajor

Governmental
Activities

District Enterprise Totals Internal Service
$ 2,665,828 $ 1,207,660 $ 100,287,607 $ 97,088,555
3,041 727,112 2,651,510 -
2,668,869 1,934,772 102,939,117 97,088,555
2,201,840 2,514,396 45,212,350 78,047,218
369,440 - 15,799,733 5,322,186
775,847 605,744 21,634,340 2,441,822

- - 7,887,945 -
3,347,127 3,120,140 90,534,368 85,811,226
(678,258) (1,185,368) 12,404,749 11,277,329
1,196,816 - 1,196,816 -
- - 4,381,968 351,715

335 (7,921) 529,882 3,683

- - - (544)
(1,596,501) 180,966 (23,044,515) (7,102,014)
- - 13,503 1,861,614
(399,350) 173,045 (16,922,346) (4,885,546)
(1,077,608) (1,012,323) (4,517,597) 6,391,783
- - 3,547,336 58,748

- - 946,009 -

- 549,299 549,299 205,639
(835,865) (418) (1,072,958) -
(1,913,473) (463,442) (547,911) 6,656,170
3,902,200 15,616,166 514,397,935 (158,039,440)

$ 1,988,727

$ 15,152,724

$ 513,850,024

$ (151,383,270)
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CITY OF STOCKTON

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

DRAFT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers and users $
Receipts for interfund services provided
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers in
Transfers out
Receipt of cash subsidies and federal grants
Interest on settlement
Principal paid on pension obligation debt
Interest paid on pension obligation debt
Due from other funds
Advances to other funds
Advances received from other funds

Proceeds from taxes

Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activitie

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from debt

Proceeds from bond insurance
Purchases of capital assets
Capital contributions received
Principal paid on debt

Interest paid on debt

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Investment earnings

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $

Major Funds
Enterprise
Water Wastewater Stormwater
Utility Utility Utility
36,746,267 $ 54,519,321 $ 5,823,229
(14,555,926) (20,504,489) (2,541,790)
(6,893,742) (14,948,722) (1,608,396)
15,296,599 19,066,110 1,673,043
- - (31,036)
6,500,727 - -
- - (308,116)
6,500,727 - (339,152)
(2,848,068) (3,551,023) -
2,627,529 919,807 -
(3,780,037) (3,090,000) -
(16,834,950) (4,783,321) -
(20,835,526) (10,504,537) -
508,716 27,071 1,026
508,716 27,071 1,026
1,470,516 8,588,644 1,334,917
77,405,661 33,136,385 2,175,504
78,876,177 $ 41,725,029 $ 3,510,421
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DRAFT

CITY OF STOCKTON
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Major Fund

Enterprise

Central Parking

Other Nonmajor

Governmental

Activities

District Enterprise Totals Internal Service
$ 2,651,242 $ 1,956,396 $ 101,696,455 96,440,572
- - - 1,861,614
(1,559,437) (2,371,012) (41,532,654) (73,191,966)
(922,611) (51,540) (24,425,011) (8,287,329)
169,194 (466,156) 35,738,790 16,822,891

- 549,299 549,299 205,639

(835,865) (418) (867,319) -

- - 6,500,727 351,715

- - (308,116) (1,159,000)

- - - 7,064,653

- - - (7,092,612)

- - - 4,587,389

- - - (411)

1,185 - 1,185 -
1,196,816 - 1,196,816 -
362,136 548,881 7,072,592 3,957,373

- - - 1,871,404

600,000 - 600,000 -

- (672,246) (7,071,337) (2,974,862)

- - 3,547,336 -

(360,000) - (7,230,037) (556,928)
(1,601,300) 672,244 (22,547,327) (69,827)
(1,361,300) @ (32,701,365) (1,730,213)
6,578 (7,921) 535,470 3,683

6,578 (7,921) 535,470 3,683
(823,392) 74,802 10,645,487 19,053,734
2,820,779 395,911 115,934,240 20,611,760

$ 1,997,387 $ 470,713 $ 126,579,727 $ 39,665,494
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CITY OF STOCKTON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Major Funds
Enterprise
Water Wastewater Stormwater
Utility Utility Utility

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss) $ 5,720,004 $ 8,696,907 $ (148,536)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 7,417,220 11,249,429 1,586,100
Other non-operating revenues - - -

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts and other receivables (640,663) (849,553) 320,509
Prepaid expenses - (32,100) -
Inventory of supplies - (118,107) -
Deferred charges - - -
Pension asset - - -
Accounts payable 2,797,870 585,325 (80,711)

Due to other governments 102,754 - -
Deposits and other liabilities (76,952) - -
Compensated absences (23,634) (465,791) (4,319)
Self-insurance - claims and judgments - - -

Net OPEB obligation - - -

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 15,296,599 $ 19,066,110 $ 1,673,043

NONCASH TRANSACTIONS:

Amortization of issuance discounts $ 14,219 $ 27,296 $ -
Amortization of issuance premiums (44,893) - -
Amortization of loss on refunding 16,818 252,222 -
Costs of issuance paid from bond proceeds 135,510 59,604 -
Capital Contributions 655,525 107,019 183,465
Transfer of capital assets from (to) other funds (69,942) (145,697) -
Change in accrued interest related to loans from other funds (5,293) (8,210) -

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS:

Cash and investments $ 39,219,806 $ 24,923,625 $ 3,510,421
Restricted assets:

Cash and investments 7,701,524 16,613,034 -

Cash and investments with fiscal agents 31,954,847 188,370 -

Total cash and investments $ 78,876,177 $ 41,725,029 $ 3,510,421

Net cash and cash equivalents $ 78,876,177 41,725,029 3,510,421
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Major Fund
Enterprise Governmental
Central Parking ~ Other Nonmajor Activities

District Enterprise Totals Internal Service

$ (678,258)  $ (1,185,368) $ 12,404,749 $ 11,277,329
775,847 605,744 21,634,340 2,441,822

- - - 1,861,614
(48,174) 4,278 (1,213,603) (647,983)
- 82,367 50,267 (73,624)

- 1,484 (116,623) -

- - - 163,170

- - - 7,247,193
88,128 (7,568) 3,383,044 (464,824)

- 17,045 119,799 -

30,547 15,862 (30,543) -
1,104 - (492,640) (333,278)
- - - (6,785,046)

- - - 2,136,518

$ 169,194 $ (466,156) $ 35,738,790 $ 16,822,891
$ 2,420 $ - $ 43,935 $ -
- - (44,893) -

- - 269,040 -

- - 195,114 -

- - 946,009 -

- - (205,639) 58,748

- - (13,503) -

$ 1,866,597 $ 470,713 $ 69,991,162 $ 39,637,344
- - 24,314,558 -

130,790 - 32,274,007 28,150
$ 1,997,387 $ 470,713 $ 126,579,727 $ 39,665,494
1,997,387 $ 470,713 $ 126,579,727 $ 39,665,494

DRAFT
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CITY OF STOCKTON
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013
Successor
Agency to the
Redevelopment
Agency
Agency Private-Purpose
Funds Trust Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 50913177 % 5,327,271
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 16,662,011 20,452,298
Receivables, net:
Interest 60,974 1,010
Accounts and other receivables 1,333,483 15,215
Deposits - 54,900
Due from other governments 1,413 -
Loans to other property owners - 106,404
Deferred charges - 2,430,446
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable - 13,047,928
Depreciable, net - 18,286,535
Total assets $ 68,971,058 59,722,007
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 323,464 18,797
Due to other governments 13,632 -
Deposits and other liabilities 68,633,962 -
Loans from the City, net - 2,495,331
Accrued interest - 2,158,896
Bonds payable - current - 3,016,560
Bonds payable - noncurrent - 122,097,814
Pollution remediation - 2,817,015
Total liabilities $ 68,971,058 132,604,413
NET POSITION $  (72,882,406)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF STOCKTON

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR JUNE 30, 2013

DRAFT

ADDITIONS
Property tax
Investment Income
Refunds and reimbursements
Miscellaneous
Transfer in
Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
General government
Public Works
Interest expense
Transfer out
Total deductions

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION
Beginning of year

End of year

Successor
Agency to the
Redevelopment
Agency
Private-Purpose
Trust Fund

$ 9,076,932
263,089

46,734

164,684
17,425,360

26,976,799

2,308,956
9,118,544
6,481,640
9,410,552

27,319,692

(342,893)

(72,539,513)

$ (72,882,406)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Stockton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the City of Stockton, California (the “City”) have been prepared in
conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles of the United States of America (“U.S.
GAAP”) as applied to governmental agencies. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB”) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The more significant of the City’s accounting policies are described below.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The City was incorporated on July 25, 1850 under the general laws of the State of California. Under the
charter adopted in 1923, the City operates under a Council-Manager and appointed City Manager form
of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public safety,
community services, engineering services, planning services, public works, general administrative
services and capital improvements.

These basic financial statements present the City and its component units, entities for which the City is
considered to be financially accountable. The City is considered to be financially accountable for an
organization if the City appoints a voting majority of that organization’s governing body and either the
City is able to impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for that organization to provide
financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the City. The City is also considered to be
financially accountable for an organization if that organization is fiscally dependent (i.e., it is unable to
adopt its budget, levy taxes, set rates or charges, or issue bonded debt without approval from the City).
In certain cases, other organizations are included as component units if the nature and significance of
their relationship with the City are such that their exclusion would cause the City’s financial statements
to be misleading or incomplete. Blended component units, although legally separate entities are, in
substance, part of the City’s operations and data from these units are combined with data of the City.
Each blended component unit has a June 30 year-end. The following entities are reported component
units:

Fiduciary Component Unit

The Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Stockton (“Successor Agency”) is a
separate legal entity, which was formed to hold the assets and liabilities of the former Redevelopment
Agency pursuant to City Council action taken on August 23, 2011. The activity of the Successor Agency
is overseen by an Oversight Board comprised of individuals appointed by various government agencies
and the City of Stockton as Successor Agency of the former Redevelopment Agency. The nature and
significance of the relationship between the City and the Successor Agency is such that it would be
misleading to exclude the Successor Agency from the City’s financial statements. The Successor Agency
is presented herein in the City’s fiduciary funds as a private-purpose trust fund for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2013.
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1.

A.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
Financial Reporting Entity, Continued
Excluded Agency

An additional governmental agency in which the City participates is the San Joaquin Area Flood
Control Agency (SJAFCA) which is jointly governed by the City and the County of San Joaquin
(County). The City retains neither an on-going financial interest in, nor obligation to SJAFCA, therefore
financial information for the SJAFCA is not included in the accompanying financial statements.

Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues and expenditures or
expenses, as appropriate. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is
used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual
provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and managerial
requirements.

In 2013, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. The Statement of Net Position reports separate
sections for Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources, when applicable.

Deferred Outflows of Resources represent outflows of resources (consumption of net position) that
apply to future periods and that, therefore, will not be recognized as an expense until that time.

Deferred Inflows of Resources represent inflows of resources (acquisition of net position) that
apply to future periods and that, therefore, are not recognized as a revenue until that time.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Financial Reporting Entity, Continued
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The City’s Government-Wide Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement
of Activities and Changes in Net Position. These statements present summaries of governmental
activities and business-type activities for the City, the primary government, accompanied by a total
column. Fiduciary activities of the City are not included in these statements. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
programs are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those expenses specifically associated
with a service, program, or department and, are clearly identifiable with a specific function or program.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
function or segment. Taxes and other items not included among program revenues are reported as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even the latter is excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.
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1.

B.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
Government-Wide Financial Statements, Continued

The Government-Wide financial statements are presented on an economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City’s assets and liabilities, including capital
assets, as well as infrastructure assets, and long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying
Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Activities presents changes in Net Position. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while
expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.

Certain types of transactions are reported as program revenues for the City in three categories:

o Charges for services
o Operating grants and contributions
o Capital grants and contributions

Certain eliminations have been made in regards to interfund activities, payables and receivables. All
internal balances in the Statement of Net Position have been eliminated except those representing
balances between the governmental activities and the business-type activities, which are presented as
internal balances and eliminated in the total primary government column. In the Statement of Activities,
internal service fund transactions have been eliminated; however, those transactions between
governmental and business-type activities have not been eliminated. The following interfund activities
have been eliminated:

e Due to, Due from other funds
e Loans to, Loans from other funds
e Transfers in, Transfers out

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds
aggregated. An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in fund
balances as presented in these statements to the net position presented in the government-wide financial
statements.

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and current
liabilities are included on the balance sheets. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures
and other financing uses) in net current assets. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available
to finance expenditures of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability
is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt and compensated absences,
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
Governmental Fund Financial Statements, Continued

which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. Governmental capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of governmental long-term
debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Deferred revenues arise when potential revenues do not meet both the “measurable” and “available”
criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when the government
receives resources before it has a legal claim to them such as when grant monies are received prior to
incurring qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods when both revenue recognition criteria are
met or when the government has a legal claim to the resources, the deferred revenue is removed from
the balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

The Reconciliation of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial Statements is
provided to explain the differences.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

e General Fund
To account for resources not accounted for in another fund. The General Fund is the City's main
operating fund reflecting transactions related to municipal governmental services supported by
taxes, intergovernmental revenues, charges for services and other governmental type revenues.

e HOME Program Loans Special Revenue Fund
To account for the City’s HOME Program providing affordable housing for low- and very low-
income residents in accordance with various federal and state laws. HOME is the largest Federal
block grant to State and local governments designed exclusively to create affordable housing for
low- and very low- income households.

e Low and Moderate-Income Housing City Loans Special Revenue Fund
To account for loans extended to eligible low and moderate-income families as approved by the
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